

# TEKON IOT PLATFORM

# **USER MANUAL**



INTERNATION OF PLATFORME

TEKON ELECTRONICS | AVEIRO, PORTUGAL P:+351234303320 N:+351933033250 E:selev@tekonelectronics.com

TEKONELECTRONICS.COM



# **Table of Contents**

OVERVIEW
Main features10
VARIABLE TYPES
Generic variables11
DASHBOARDS17
Create a dashboard17
Change dashboard name18
Lock/unlock dashboard18
Update graphic environment widgets18
Other options18
Clone19
Remove
DATASOURCES
Types of datasources23
Datasources listing35
Datasources actions
Datasource status
Datasource details
Data types
WIDGETS40
Datasource behaviour over time40
Configure chart widget42
Graphical data export plug-in43
Datasource variable value44
Datasource variable value (gauge)45
Active alarm list48
Active alarms overview
Data table50
Widgets options
Graphical environment customization53
USER MANAGEMENT



Users permissions	54
User profile	55
User profiles list	57
Users	58
Users list	59
Recover password	60
ALARMS	63
Alarm types	63
Notifications	65
Schedule	66
Alarms categories	68
History	68
Alarms actions	69
Configure a "Value" type alarm	70
Configure an "Inactivity" type alarm	72
DATA EXPORT	73
DATA ANALYSIS	74
Variables selection	74
Variables to analyze	75
Analysis period	76
Aggregation	77
Graphic	78
Scales configuration	79
Thresholds bands configuration	80
Granularity	80
Table	83
PERIODIC REPORTS	84
Selection of datasources	86
Selection of variables	87
Selection of report information	88
Thresholds bands	89
Aggregation type	89
Aggregation interval	



NOTIFICATIONS SERVICES	92
Activate notifications	92
Limit notifications	92
Notifications services configuration	95
Create API Keys on the GatewayAPI platform	99
SMS credit	101
GENERAL SETTINGS	102
Language	102
Datasource limit	102
Upload limit by datasource	103
Customized image and information	103
API KEYS	107
MQTT	108
Enable MQTT protocol	108



# **Table of Images**

Figure 1 - Tekon IoT Platform architecture	9
Figure 2 - Variable list	
Figure 3 - Add variable window	12
Figure 4 - Available icons to match with variables	13
Figure 5 - Linear equation application	13
Figure 6 - 4-20 and 0-10 variables	14
Figure 7 - Boolean replacement formula	14
Figure 8 - Scale formula configuration	15
Figure 9 - Limit number of decimal place	
Figure 10 - Decimal limits type selection box	
Figure 11 - Tekon IoT Platform dashboard	17
Figure 12 - Dashboard options	17
Figure 13 - Change dashboard name	
Figure 14 - Options to lock dashboards	
Figure 15 - Additional dashboard options	
Figure 16 - Main window for cloned dashboard	
Figure 17 - Dashboards marking and listing	
Figure 18 - API Key field	20
Figure 19 - Datasource configuration pages	
Figure 20 - Datasource configuration pages	
Figure 21 - Datasource variable options	22
Figure 22 - Variables import options	22
Figure 23 - Options available for variables	
Figure 24 - Page of DUOS Temp variables	23
Figure 25 - Page of DUOS Hygrotemp variables	24
Figure 26 - Page of DUOS CO2 variables	24
Figure 27 - Page of DUOS Di+Temp variables	25
Figure 28 - Page of DUOS inAirQuality datasource variables	
Figure 29 - Page of DUOS inCO2 datasource variables	26
Figure 30 - Page of DUOS in HygroT datasource variables	26
Figure 31 - Page of DUOS inTemp datasource variables	27
Figure 32 - Page of DUOS uTemp datasource variables	27
Figure 33 - Page of DUOS MultiTemp datasource variables	28
Figure 34 - Page of PLUS datasource variables	28
Figure 35 - Page of PLUS 1AI datasource variables	29
Figure 36 - Page of PLUS 2AI datasource variables	
Figure 37 - Page of PLUS 1DI datasource variables	30
Figure 38 - Page of PLUS 2DI datasource variables	31
Figure 39 - Page of PLUS 1UT datasource variables	32
Figure 40 - Page of PLUS 2UT datasource variables	32
Figure 41 - Page of PLUS 4AI datasource variables	33



Figure 42 Page of PLUS 4AI4DI1UT datasource variables	34
Figure 43 - Page of PLUS TWPH-1UT datasource variables	34
Figure 44 - Datasources page	35
Figure 45 - Datasources overview	35
Figure 46 - Datasources filters	35
Figure 47 - Datasources listing options	36
Figure 48 - Options with datasource listing activation	36
Figure 49 - Different datasources status	37
Figure 50 – Datasources detailed information	38
Figure 51 - Example of data type selection	38
Figure 52 - Available widgets	40
Figure 53 - Example of a timeline graph	40
Figure 54 - Timeline chart with hidden variables	41
Figure 55 - Widget configuration	
Figure 56 - Widget variables configuration	41
Figure 57 - Charts with threshold bands	
Figure 58 - Timeline graph plug-in	
Figure 59 - Data export through plug-in	
Figure 60 - Interface of single value widget	
Figure 61 - Main window of widget configuration	
Figure 62 - Widget variable selection	
Figure 63 - Gauge widget interface	
Figure 64 - Gauge widget configuration	
Figure 65 - Widget ranges	46
Figure 66 – Selection of range colours	47
Figure 67 - Example of a range configuration	
Figure 68 - Range configuration error	
Figure 69 - Alarm list widget	
Figure 70 - Configuration of alarm list widget	
Figure 71 - Alarms overview widget	
Figure 72 - Configuration of active alarms overview widget	50
Figure 73 - Data Table widget	
Figure 74 - Configuration of data table widget	51
Figure 75 - Datasources for data table	
Figure 76 - Aggregation methods for data table widget	
Figure 77 - Number of entries for data table widget	
Figure 78 - Widgets options available at dashboards	
Figure 79 - Page of permissions management	
Figure 80 - Validation boxes of functionalities	
Figure 81 - Create a user profile	
Figure 82 - Options to change password and send data	
Figure 83 - Page of user profiles	
Figure 84 - User profile options	
Figure 85 - Error message accessing pages without permission	
Tigure 05 Error message accessing pages without permission	



Figure 86 - Create User page	.58
Figure 87 - Page of users on Tekon IoT Platform	.59
Figure 88 - Options available to each user register	.59
Figure 89 - Password recovery form	.60
Figure 90 - Password recovery error	
Figure 91 - Email for password recorevy has been sent	.61
Figure 92 - Password recovery email	.61
Figure 93 - New password assigned	.62
Figure 94 - Behaviour of value type alarms	.64
Figure 95 - Behaviour of inactivity type alarms	.64
Figure 96 - Fields to enter the notifications contacts	
Figure 97 - Alarm schedule options	
Figure 98 - Days of the week when alarms are active	.67
Figure 99 – Configuration of hours and days to the alarms	.67
Figure 100 - Alarm history page	.68
Figure 101 - Active alarms actions	
Figure 102 - Deactive alarm actions	
Figure 103 - Inactivity alarm details	.70
Figure 104 - Value alarm details	.70
Figure 105 - Alarm configuration page	
Figure 106 - Variables of selected datasources	.71
Figure 107 – Selected and blocked variables	.71
Figure 108 - Alarm configuration page	.72
Figure 109 - Data export page	.73
Figure 110 - Data analysis page	.74
Figure 111 - Selection of variables	.74
Figure 112 - Variables list	.75
Figure 113 - List of variables for analysis	.75
Figure 114 - Action to delete variables	.76
Figure 115 - Change variables name	.76
Figure 116 - Analysis period for configuration	.76
Figure 117 - Aggregation parameters - type and interval	.77
Figure 118 - Data analysis	.78
Figure 119 - Graph scales	.79
Figure 120 - Scales configuration	.79
Figure 121 - Manual configuration of scales	.79
Figure 122 - Timeline chart with threshold bands	.80
Figure 123 - Thresholds bands configuration	.80
Figure 124 - Graph with granularity level	.81
Figure 125 - Update button	.81
Figure 126 - Graph elements	.82
Figure 127 - Formats for data export	.82
Figure 128 - Aggregated data in table	.83
Figure 129 - General settings of periodic reports	.85



Figure 130 - Section configuration	86
Figure 131 - Datasources selection	86
Figure 132 - Selection of information to display in this section	86
Figure 133 - Variables selection	87
Figure 134 - List of available variables	87
Figure 135 - List of chosen variables	87
Figure 136 - Report information	88
Figure 137 - Parameters of data aggregation	
Figure 138 - Sections options	89
Figure 139 - Section error	90
Figure 140 - Periodic reports options	90
Figure 141 - Notifications service configuration page	92
Figure 142 - Enabling notifications and limit options	93
Figure 143 - Notification limits fields	93
Figure 144 - Example of notifications limit	94
Figure 145 - Status and limit of notifications	94
Figure 146 - Email services configuration	95
Figure 147 - Email service configuration form	96
Figure 148 - SMS EZ4U service configuration	97
Figure 149 - EZ4U user access	98
Figure 150 – SMS GatewayAPI service configuration	99
Figure 151 - GatewayApi site menu	99
Figure 152 - GatewayApi platform API Keys page	100
Figure 153 - API Key name label	100
Figure 154 - API Key information on GatewayApi	
Figure 155 - Credit of SMS notification service	101
Figure 156 - Languages available	102
Figure 157 - Limit number of datasources	102
Figure 158 - Upload limit of Tekon IoT Platform	103
Figure 159 - Tekon IoT Platform customized info	103
Figure 160 - Customized logo of Tekon IoT Platform	104
Figure 161 - Customized logo on login window	104
Figure 162 - Configured favicon	105
Figure 163 - Footer information	106
Figure 164 - Tekon IoT Platform footer	106
Figure 165 - Application of API Keys	107
Figure 166 - Send data via API option	107
Figure 167 - MQTT credentials	108
Figure 168 - Fields to copy the fields and generate new credentials	108



# **OVERVIEW**

**Tekon IoT Platform** is an user-friendly platform designed to assist in digital transformation, integration and visualization of data from the real time monitoring process. The integration of devices that control a wide spectrum of variables allows the optimization of processes and productivity management.

The customizable interface offers to the users the conditions to build graphical analysis that most effectively responds to their business needs.

 TEKON DEVICES
 THIRD-PARTY DEVICES

 Image: Cloud Service
 Image: Cloud Service

 Image: Cloud Service<

Multi-device access makes it accessible from anywhere at any time.

Figure 1 - Tekon IoT Platform architecture



# Main features

## **Connection to third-party devices**

The growing emergence of IoT devices for process monitoring applications has motivated the possibility of the integration of third-party devices **Tekon IoT Platform**, thus providing a supportive and complementary platform for other solutions.

## Data collection and custom visualization

Data collection, aggregation and visualization are user-friendly processes, making **Tekon IoT Platform** adjustable for any business. The concern for having vital business information organized in an interface is filled with the elaboration of custom dashboards.

## Advanced user management

Platform management can be defined by multiple users with different usage permissions. **Tekon IoT Platform** enables the configuration of user profiles with customizable permissions for different areas of the platform.

## Notification system and configurable alarms

Customizing notifications and alarms makes real-time monitoring a more cost-effective asset. Tekon IoT Platform allows you to customize an email and sms service to receive notifications when the logged values are outside the limits set in the configured alarms.

## Data export

Real-time access to information is a deciding factor in innovative organizations. Tekon IoT Platform allows you to export data based on your displayed log history. This feature allows data analysis to help interpret snapshot data.

## Real time monitoring

Real-time monitoring is already an imperative basis for applications supplemented with IoT platforms. By using it, you can achieve improved process performance and reduce unexpected troubleshooting costs.



# VARIABLE TYPES

The variables assigned to each of the data types identify the type of process that we want to view. Based on **Tekon Electronics** products tailored to connect directly to the platform, there are some standard variables that have been added to make it easy to assign them to datasources.

**Model** – transmitter model;

**Sensor Model –** sensor model in the transmitter;

**RSSI** – received signal strength indication;

Communication Period – time interval between each communication, in seconds;

Elapsed time – elapsed time since last communication, in seconds;

**Power supply voltage –** supply voltage of the transmitter;

Firmware version - transmitter firmware version;

Hardware version - transmitter hardware version;

Internal Temperature – temperature measured by internal sensor;

External Temperature – temperature measured by external sensor;

Humidity – relative humidity measured by the external sensor;

**CO2** – carbon dioxide concentration measured by external sensor;

CO2 Average – average value of carbon dioxide measured by external sensor;

Digital Input – digital input status;

Process variables such as "Internal Temperature", "External Temperature", "Humidity", "CO2", "CO2 Average" and "Digital Input" that are characteristic of some datasource types associated with the **Tekon Electronics** products, have properties open for edition.

## **Generic variables**

In addition to the variables previously defined in the platform, you can define new variables to receive data from other **Tekon Electronics** products or from third-party devices.

This variables model definition, which becomes more comprehensive, is divided into sections that allow the optimization of data visualization.

## Value Type

This parameter corresponds to the data type assignment to each variable.



## Unity

Each application has different reference units for each process. In this field the user can choose the appropriated units to associate with the variables.

Sele	ect unit
+ A	dd unit
Arbi	itrary unit (a.u.)
Atm	osphere (atm)
Dec	ibel milliwatts (dBm)
Deg	ree celsius (°C)
Deg	prees (°)
Met	rre (m)
Part	ts-per-million (ppm)
Perc	centage (%)
Pres	ssure (mbar/hPa)
Sec	onds (s)
Velo	ocity (m/s)
Volt	ts (V)
Wit	hout unit

Figure 2 - Variable list

The user has permission to add new units for process characterization. To do this you need to set the unit name and symbol.

+ Add variable	×
* Required fields	
Name *	
Type a name	
Value type *	
Select value type	•
Unit *	
+ Add unit	•
Unit name *	Unit Symbol *
(ex:volt	(ex:(V)
Icon	
Formula	
Limit number of decimal place	
	Cancel Save

Figure 3 - Add variable window



## lcon

This parameter defines an icon that characterizes the type of variable to be monitored. The options that are made available have been set to be as objective as possible.



Figure 4 - Available icons to match with variables

Generic variables set based on the data type have a formula used to set this value.

## Linear Equation

Linear equations are used to find a final value from which the calculation derives from gain and offset values. The existence of linear equations relations between a quantity allows us to calculate the value that defines this relationship.

The implemented formula refers to the equation **y=mx+b**. In this context, "m" represents the gain and "b" represents the offset. A practical example for applying such variables may be the conversion of temperature from degrees Celsius to Fahrenheit.

	(+) Add variable	×			🔕 atas -
Create datasource	* Required fields				
🥥 Parentes 3 💿 taxakina	Nome * Viscable Name				
Variables Management	Value type *				
variacies management	/ be				(1 11001) (+ MU)
🗏 Pesition Variable Ann Value type	unit *		Formalia	Decision Planets	Actions
Per della svalida in adde	Depres colouis (HC)	•			
	loon a •				
6	Formula Input value type * Formula type *				+ Deros 💿
	Flat • Description	•			
	Galn* Offset*				
	(car ) (citua				
	C same number of decimal picci				
	C				
	COLORED MATCHINE, SA				

Figure 5 - Linear equation application

## 4 – 20 mA

In this format, analog current output signals from transmitters are transformed into reference values for several variables such as temperature, humidity or CO2.



## 0 – 10 V

As in the previous example, analog current output signals from transmitters into reference values for several variables. You must set the minimum and maximum values for each of the variable types. In short, it is to establish reference values for converting the output signals.

<u>теноп</u> 🚓 изная 👗 иляз -	(+) Add variable	×
Create datasource	* Regime fields	
Variables Management	Value type *	( 🛔 input) (+ alo) Fermilia Decinal Paco Adom
ten della avalidad de latate	Degree obtax (%) Icon I •	•
-	🖬 Formala Input value type * 🛛 Formala type *	( frema ) 😁
	Min * Fax * (76) Current number of boolmal picos	
	o in a surface of the later	

Figure 6 - 4-20 and 0-10 variables

## **Boolean Replacement**

The "Boolean Replacement" formula type consist in setting condition values to return the reference values for Boolean data – true or false.

	(+) Add variable	×			<b>6</b> ani -
Create datasource	* Required Twicts				
😨 Hugana 🌾 🚯 Weither	Name *				
Variables Management	Volue type *				( <u>± squit</u> ) (+ Att)
	Plat				Netterna II. Cannad
🗄 Position Valuide II.a.a value type	Unit *		Permia	Beclinal Places	Actives
No des wallele in relet	Webbut unit	•			
	Icon				
		_			
0	C PORTU				4-Missur CO
	Input value type * Pormula type *				
	Bool • Boo Rook implacement.	•			
	Value to true * Value to false *				
	(maximum) (maximum)				
	Einik number of decinal place				
	0	0			
	O THIS - MINIMUM ANTIMACED ICA.				

Figure 7 - Boolean replacement formula

## Scale

The "Scale" formula type consists of seting the minimum and maximum scale values for displaying a variable and configuring the values corresponding to each position. This option is ideal for performing a linear conversion using two points.



	atasouro				* Required fields					
9	Popetan	9 (1) Vanillar			Hazar *					
					Volue type *					
(aria	bles Mana	igement.			Pist				(*	insen) (+ Ant
-	President	wiertal/de-		watare types	UnR*		in type-	Postable	merical states	ainties
		model.	(m)	true	selectual	•				2 4 8 3
8	1	Samur Macad	5003	Ute	ten (# -)					1 6 1 8
	-1	R531	ad	216	C Harris da					241
ai.	14	Communication Resort	0	ule:	Input value type " to	maia type *				241
		Eaperd Time	0	111m		icale +				2413
	. 60	Place Supply of Easter	4	91.47		Andreas activ				* * * * 1
н	÷	Permutant variables	500	song	No.*	••				1 4 1 1
	1.6	Head owner internation	200	Store	🖬 Unit sumber d' decimai pisce		1			248
×.		Internel Temperature	8	rior.	Type* H*	Declaral places *				
8	ціх.	storia tanjatiko	8	P\$327	(MUE					1 4 1
		HANDLY	A	24		(65) 5**				1021

Figure 8 - Scale formula configuration

## Limit number of decimal place

This field allows you to limit the number of decimal places of the variable value. The option is mandatory in some data types, which will be selected by default, optional in other aspects and not applicable in some variables, namely "String" and "Bool".

* Required fields			
Name *			
Type a name			
Value type *			
Float			•
Unit *			
+ Add unit			•
Unit name *		Unit Symbol *	
ex:volt		(ex:(V)	
Icon			
Formula			
Input value type *		Formula type *	
Int	•	Select formula type	•
Limit number of decimal	place		
Type *		N <sup>o</sup> Decimal places *	
Round	•)	2	

Figure 9 - Limit number of decimal place



Limitation of decimal places can occur by two ways:

- **Round**: rounds the value to the number of set decimal places. By default, the number of decimal places may be set to 0 or 2;
- **Truncate**: The number of decimal places set in this parameter will result in the number of places after the comma that will be displayed. All other values that could be viewed are completely deleted.

# NOTE: compared to the "Round" type of decimal place imitation, unnecessary digits are eliminated, but there is no rounding process in the last square.

Nº Decimal places
In Decimal places

Figure 10 - Decimal limits type selection box



# **DASHBOARDS**

Dashboards are a versatile way to group and graph the information resulting from monitoring processes. Widgets are the tools that allow you to configure the graphical interfaces of the monitoring process variables. Each dashboard can be made up of several widgets and uniquely organized by the user.

For example, you can create a dashboard that bundles graphs of datasources placed on the factory floor, or, from a more advanced viewpoint, you can create a dashboard with widgets targeted for a better mobile experience.



Figure 11 - Tekon IoT Platform dashboard

## **Create a dashboard**

Dashboards can be created at any time through a simple one-step process.

Upon the dashboards are created, the possibility of editing these information boards is open to some options. All options can be viewed and grouped at the top of the dashboard.



Figure 12 - Dashboard options

Let's explain the possibilities of each one of the options.



# **Change dashboard name**

At this point we have the possibility to edit the name of the dashboard.

Rename dashboard	×
Dashboard name*	
	cancel update

Figure 13 - Change dashboard name

# Lock/unlock dashboard

Dashboards can be locked to prevent other users from editing. This feature is only available to users with full control of dashboards. When the dashboard is locked, editing options are limited, leaving only the option to unlock the dashboard or update widgets in the graphical environment.



Figure 14 - Options to lock dashboards

# Update graphic environment widgets

At any time, the user can update their graphical environment.

## **Other options**

Still applied to dashboards, there are alternative options available to the user.



Figure 15 - Additional dashboard options



## Clone

The user can clone this dashboard, creating a new dashboard filled with the widgets configured in the reference dashboard. The dashboard name and preference options are editable.

+ Clone Dashboar	d	×
Dashboard name*		
Preferences		
🗹 🗙 Set as favorite	🗹 ቾ Set as default	
	cance	l create

Figure 16 - Main window for cloned dashboard

## Remove

User can delete the dashboard from their platform. Dashboard preference and highlight choices let you organize these elements.

**Remove from/Add to default** – can set the dashboard as default to show as the main graphic interface in the platform;

**Remove from/Add to favourite** – by flagging or removing a dashboard as part of your favourites, you will be inserting or removing that information board from a section that initially lists the favourite dashboard and makes them available to the user.

	2 DASHBOARD
DASHBOARDS	(2) + Create
★ Favorites <b>①</b>	All 🕗
filter dashboards	٩
Temperature 🕇 ★	

Figure 17 - Dashboards marking and listing



# DATASOURCES

Datasources are the primary sources of all information that can be presented on the **Tekon IoT Platform**. Datasources may be sensors from **Tekon Electronics** or may be configured to represent data from third-party devices. The datasource configuration is divided between **Properties** and **Variables**.

## Properties

Within the datasource properties, device identification information can be set.

• Name: name that identifies the datasource in the platform;

• **Type**: type of datasource. To find information about datasource types, go to the chapter **TYPES OF DATASOURCES**;

• **Time Zone**: select a continent and reference location. It is automatically with the user time zone;

NOTE: the option selected in this field will serve as a reference for setting alarm time intervals.

• **Api Key**: the information in this field is automatically generated by the system. This is a unique datasource ID, such as a fingerprint. You can learn more about this feature in the **API KEYS** chapter.

You have two features directly related to this attribute. You can copy the text in the field by clicking the **Copy** button. You can also generate another *Api Key* by clicking the **New Key** button.

рі Кеу*		
bhebenes-bd76-4074-and fab.bht12778be	Copy	New key

#### Figure 18 - API Key field

• **Metadata:** you can add relevant information about the datasource. This information will not be viewed on any other occasion.



## Variables

In this second step of datasources configuration, you can set the variables applied to each datasource.

NOTE: Although you have the possibility to set the variables you may think relevant, this step has a direct relation with the datasource type that you chose before. Some datasource types already have variables assigned by default. By choosing one of these datasource types, the variables will be automatically loaded into this repository.

	latasoun	120									
arta	ables Mana	-							L mean	Œ	- 13
×.	restrice	variable	Loon	value 1/5#	unit	tapat value type	tomais	uncirus) etacos	3	retru	r.
8	3	Part	346	0.00					2	1.1	1
н,	2	Saya Maja	(m)	UN C					20	e.e	0.9
	33	R22	.atl	20	Dec os indeversi (c.im)	83	(4)	38	8	1	1
1	4	Economic word	O	0.0	Service and the service of the servi	*	1	×	÷.	1	0
8		Educa Tac	U	05.	5.0. matri				÷.,		6
	¢	Power Supply voltage	+	(Tex:	vatur (x)				+	. 4	1
	\$	ETTOMA WINCO	<b>3</b> 0	start	5	78	-	8	~	. /	
а,		Becker Vision	20	10 a.g					2.5		
в.	۶.	Internal Temperature	8	nx.	Dograt, tols us (%0)						•
11	35	Ederal Trapolitiko	8	7s.	Duplet out as (NC)				(65)	1.1	,

Figure 19 - Datasource configuration pages

exun	📾 270-0530 🧰	1151000550	🌢 (KAN) - 🛛 🛢	ww.s. 🖕 🖨	18-118-02 ·			💿 - 2 mil
eate datasouro	c.							
Punta >	🔅 Kisatu							
ariables Managen	ient							(± 1992) (+ 14
0. Puellar	Variable	Dom:	Water type	946	Input value lass:	Portudu	DodnaiPlaces	Asland
s sola mallebis in actis								
- 41°								- 4 mar
					-val.104.04.00.00.00			

Figure 20 - Datasource configuration pages

The variables configuration process can take place in two different ways. You can rely on the import of variables or add variables filling in all their parameters.





Figure 21 - Datasource variable options

## Variable import

Importing variables into a new datasource decrees the assignment of variables based on settings made in other datasources already existing in the platform.

To use this feature, you can choose the datasource that is the basis for importing variables. The next step is selection of variables intended to be added to the new datasource. By default, the import selects all the variables from the datasource chosen in the previous step.

CERCON & DADIBOARD & ALABAS -	(+) Import variables	×			<b>O</b> ++++
create datasource	* Despired Betch				
🥙 Properties 🗧 🕧 Yanaka	Datascarce * Duces TRIAP Set File				
Variables Management	system variables				(± inpor) (+ All
- E Position Vehicity ton Vehicitype	1064		Famelie	Dealmal Photos	Atha
to her overlap o table	derwinerkalten Period plagsed 11%b				
	Power Sapply Kettings	11			
-	Forma w Version				# PENENA
	Fondhard veision	- 88			
	Edenul Terpeature				

Figure 22 - Variables import options

Position	Variable	liner)	Value Vype	Unit	Import walow type:	Formula	Decimal Places	Actions
11	HICH	5nC	18.2				81	+ + <b>/</b> Ι
2	server multer	jug	USIX					+ + + I
3	16957		Inf	Depthal million the (49m)				++11

*Figure 23 - Options available for variables* 

# NOTE: By importing the variables, the actions of management are all active to allow their customization.

## Add variables

Adding variables is identical to the process of creating generic variables. You can see all the necessary steps in the **GENERIC VARIABLES** chapter.



# **Types of datasources**

The datasource types available for configuration on **Tekon IoT Platform** make the application inclusive for both **Tekon Electronics** products and third-party product configurations.

## **DUOS TEMP**

**DUOS TEMP** datasources are configured for temperature monitoring using the **DUOS TEMP** product from the DUOS product family. The variables provided are automatically generated and set ensuring that user has access to all parameters supported by the transmitter. The reference variables of this product, *"Internal Temperature"* and *"External Temperature"* are the only ones with an open configuration and editable to the user.

9,536	atasouro	-									
	bles Mana	0						-		-	
	Position	Variable	Iron	Value type	Unit	Separt volue type	Formula	Decisual Places	t (nport)	Action	+ A0
	1	Modul	340	uave					+	÷ ,	,
	2	Sensor Model	340	Writ						4.4	e.
	а	R973	atl	Ire	Decider milliontha (dlim)		12		Ŧ	4.4	,
8		Constantion Result	0	ulet .	Seconds (v)		4			4.4	1
		Bapad Title	O	une	Seconds (1)				Ψ.	ب بل	e
8	6	Power Supply Village	4	Faet	Volta (V)					4.4	e
	7	Permane Version	26	Sting					$\tau$	ψ.	è
		Hardsare Version	26	String						5.1	e.
		Belancial Tempartation	8	Hut	Degree califian (HC)				Ť	ψ.	,
	10	extensil tampetiture	8	for.	Degree calians (MC)				*	4.14	,

Figure 24 - Page of DUOS Temp variables

## **DUOS HYGROTEMP**

Like the datasource type referred to in the previous section, **DUOS HYGROTEMP** datasources are tailored to match **DUOS HYGROTEMP** transmitters with **Tekon IoT Platform**.

Together with the "Internal Temperature" and "External Temperature" variables in this datasource model, the "Humidity" variable gives to the user the same edit permissions, closing the configuration edit to the remaining variables, which are set and set automatically.

The values of "*External Temperature*" and "*Humidity*" variables are recorded through an external probe coupled to the transmitter. On the other hand, the "*Internal Temperature*" is recorded by an internal probe incorporated in the transmitter.



9	Properties	() Largen									
Grial	bles Mana	gemont							( tree	Œ	F a
	Postker	Versione	los•	Value type	5+A	Impail visitor type	Corrsula	Decimal Plates		4.UPR	6
ю.	3	wada	340	6061		×.	10 A	85	100	1.1	
	2	Seal Aut Model	(m)	aties						1	e.
	5	iene	-11	and .	bedad millionis (40m)				+	1 1	ŕ
	4	Communication Period	0	03rs	Seconds (s)				2.1	1 1	P
	5	Espoor Time	0	Uart	Seconds (a)			÷.	· · ·	1.1	p.
s:	4	Power Supply Voltage		That	V5H (V)				* 1	11	ė.
	τ.	Results Materia	340	-					+ )	i i	,
		(andware West H)	340	Stea						1.1	1
н.		tanta subsau	8	Hait	congrese colorisas (+4.)	+1	8	<del>1</del> 8			,
0	ы	External Temperature		Field	Cogno micrar (%)	¥1					
	.18	webb	٠	54	Percentage (N)				#14		,

Figure 25 - Page of DUOS Hygrotemp variables

## DUOS CO2

**DUOS CO2** datasources relate the **DUOS CO2** transmitter to the **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are "*Internal Temperature*", "*CO2*" and "*CO2 Average*". The last two references are related to the measures recorded through the external probe, and the first variable is measured by the transmitter internal probe.

conc	dataso	urce									
	<sup>n</sup> uana-	0									
/arial	ales Mana	genent							(± inpot)	G	4.4
8.3	Puskin	Waniable	Inter	Value: tape	u-it	Install volum tage:	Formala	Decimal Places	3	ktion	ě.
8	31	Wadel	50	Ulici					÷	2.1	ŧ.
	3	Server Madel	90	0341					+	5 1	1
	2	1051	ad	25	Depisel millionarita (68m)				÷.		,
		Conversion Control	C	UNI	Security (a)	*i			2.5		•
	*	нараастиче	O	- init	succes (c)		90 - E		Φ.	1.1	1.5
		Proven Supply Waltinger	+	Own	vals (V)				6		1
	1	Hances Veran	20	String					+		1
		Hardsons Hasian	96	sime					÷.)		ł
н.	*	Internal Temperature	8	ne	Degree of skie (PC)						,
н.	(ji	002		000	Anti-portation (1900)						
	в	UUL Anyraga	ø	usi.	Paris par cellum (ppm)				+	1.0	•

Figure 26 - Page of DUOS CO2 variables

## **DUOS DI+TEMP**

Datasources configured with the **DUOS DI+TEMP** type integrates all **Tekon Electronics DUOS DI+TEMP** transmitters with the **Tekon IoT Platform**. Event detection logging via a digital input is done through the "*Digital Input*" variable, pre-set in the configuration and editable, together with the "*External Temperature*" and "*Internal Temperature*" variables.

The "*Counter*" variable is assigned to the list of available variables to record the number of events that occur in Digital Input.



	dataso	2									
	1005/653	) (j) Varadini									
arial	des Mane	gement							(± inpor)	G	- 10
	and the second	WorkelNic	Ice	Walket type	0-H	Input value type:	Passoala	Decimal Picco		Action	
8	3	Nede	36	030					Ŧ	4.4	e.i
×.	2	Server Notel	26	ubu					+	5.0	1
	*	+58)	.atl	21	Enclosed embourable (#Bert)	-		-	÷	6.0	,
	4	Communication Ported	C	use	Siconds (1)				Ŧ		e
		Парин: Пле	C	Uter	Seconds (a)				τ.		e.
а.	*	mover supply lostage	+	ma	996 (V)				45	5.9	,
	× .	Tennes Values	540	streep					4	6.4	ŕ
		Hondward Mars an	36	theog					Ŧ		r.
я.		mand hepsizes	8	Hite	none colas (%)	•	8	11	t.		,
	18	Relation Tole portions	8	Acr	Elegeno colcute (%)	2	2	22	+		,
	18	Tagest logar		14					Ŧ		e
	12	Date	340	11					Ŧ		ŝ

Figure 27 - Page of DUOS Di+Temp variables

## **DUOS in AirQuality**

**DUOS inAirQuality** datasources link the **DUOS inAir** transmitter with **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are *"Internal Temperature"*, *"Relative Humidity"*, *"CO2"*, *"CO2 Average"* and *"Atmospheric Pressure"*.

ate datasor	roe							
hoste	(i) maan							
riables Plana	permett							(1 layer) (+ 4
E Pauleer	Kendle		Volum Sympo		legal salar type	Famale	Deres Plans	Arizen.
. a.	Pauli	540	Les					101
	Sensor Minista	50	ule					2.4.1
a 3	1001		14	Decises with web kidler d				2.57
	Correspondence (Assort	O	Lite	Sameth (K)				+ + 1
	tiqued him	O	- Giá	linear sile (a)				261
	Ruser supply velocity	+	-	work (w)	2		54	101
1 . P.	Deniera Nazion	246	ante					2.4.2
	Fordaute Persian	5+0	240					1 4 1
	actional Monoporatives	8	-	Degeneratives (*0)			Nord Lip.	1 - 1
	Nation-senalty	۵	Per .	forswage (%)			Round & dig.	+ + +
	612		~	Nation willow band			Noved 3 day	1 + 4 1
	112 Juayage		~	(lana part andres (spin))			linered X days	+ = 1
10 N	No andrea, Panena e		1941	American (whee Select			Harris Re-	2.00
- 10	Dote lace		10					201

Figure 28 - Page of DUOS inAirQuality datasource variables

## DUOS inCO2

**DUOS inCO2** datasources link the **DUOS inCO2** transmitter with **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are *"Internal Temperature", "CO2", "CO2 Average"* and *"Atmospheric Pressure"*.



eate datasos	) (i) umm							
ariabiles Hono								(± merer) (+ ad
= tester	Remarkle	4000	Walnue ry per	-	Ingust values byga	Formula	Derinal Hares	Arkun
# 1	Puela	342	4.4					+ 6 0
	Tenter Hund	3-6	win .					++7
	1.111 A.111	ti	De-	Sected estimates (#Sw)				120
	Generalished	O	uni	incenters)				1-1
8 E	Deputer Time	O	UDM	Secondarie)				++1
= (e)	Netzr Score Veloza	+	Plut	104x 525				101
a	PERSON VALUE	35	1914				14	+ - 2
a a .	saduare/lages	345	(mrg			÷.	6	241
1 A	Internel Temporatures	8	Tel	legite oblice (*C)			Riend 3 da	
11 IV	078		reat	Periode and the party	9 9		R64033.55	2.61
a	DD Average		-	Participation (yes)			Frontlidg	
a	Arealsh Proves		Post	hosue (nite/k/h)			Rierd I da.	2.47
10 N	Sector ages		10		8		-	

Figure 29 - Page of DUOS inCO2 datasource variables

## **DUOS inHygroT**

**DUOS inHygroT** datasources link the **DUOS inHygrotemp** transmitter with **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are *"Internal Temperature"* and *"Relative Humidity"*.

		) (7) vinden							
riable	s Mana	geneat							( <u>tanor</u> ) (+
i na	-tion	Variable	Aures	Value type:	Gett	Japat value tops	Formula	Decimal Places	feller
	¥.	. NACE	90C	ure	19	23	¥	*	* 4.2
	2	Sealor Hotel	346	uke					+
	2	8251		lst.	Decisei nilivatte (dilec)				4 4 1
	÷.	Committee Parist	٢	the .	Security (s)				1.4.4
e 3	*	Clapsel Time	٢	Sec.	(seconds (y)				水中の
	÷	Power Gappy Vottage	+	Fieldt	unter (V)				1 4 3
	7	Figures Westing	346	8940					+ + -
		Tertificate United	300	Seaj					÷ = ,
6.3	ę.	atoma temperature	8	Print :	Degree on land (PC)			Recedidg.	n
6.3	10	Relation Hamilty	۵	Ficz	Recordage (%)			found t stat.	+ ↓ ↓
	ii .	Digts: Input		lat.		24	8		+ + +

Figure 30 - Page of DUOS in HygroT datasource variables

## **DUOS inTemp**

**DUOS inTemp** datasources link the **DUOS inTemp** transmitter with **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, only the *"Internal Temperature"* variable is enabled with editing properties.



	dataso								
	des Mana								±20001) (+)
	Position	Varbelde	Itee	Weber 1930	and a	Topot value type	Fernada	Cectorial Places	Acless
0	3	Madd	300	une					2 6 1
н.	ż	Steam Medici	36	UNK					1.6.2
8	•	5551	li	Dit.	Decised collegester (effer)				2.4.1
		Contractor Parts)	C	1.000	minant(s)	2			421
	л	Expose Time	C	Ultr	Servedt (x)				241
н.	*	Here Saudir Veligue	+	the	Vep1.2 (V)				2.4.1
	ž.	Hannan Vesina	20	90ms					261
	*	Hardwale Versea	26	9.49					· · /
н.	¥.	literal legendura	8	FR.E	Degree plane (PL)			Round L dig.	++1
	20	Digital legue		Dre					2+1

Figure 31 - Page of DUOS inTemp datasource variables

## **DUOS uTemp**

**DUOS uTemp** datasources link the **DUOS uTemp** transmitter with **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are *"Internal Temperature"* and *"External Temperature"*.

9		) () Value									
rial	blos Mana	periorit						(	A beaut		Ŧ
	PostBin	Variation	lices	Value type	tref.	input solue input	Transite	Denied Hares		м	8.974
6	$\langle \hat{x} \rangle$	Not	500	UDH:	14 - C			λ9	. 4	4	1
		Name of Million	340	1.00				40	4	i.	1
	2	Rai		Lec	Dock of milling the (dam)				7	+	1
	+	Communitation Pariosi	0	Une	Secondo (s)					4	1
6	3	Physical Tritle	O	LINK .	1963/005 [k]		82	÷:	Φ		1
s'		News Reply whap	+	Haz	with (N)	-		*	1.1	16	1
÷	7	Rinken Versien	503	String					4	÷	1
		Tarriera terrier	200	Drive .					.+	4	1
	٠	Toria Seperate		the contract of the contract o	Depier creak (ND)			Raussi 1 day	. 1		,
6	10	MIDICALIDEA	0	642	magnos casalas (rej	*	4	Name of the	: -†	-	1
e.	-11	Cigital Lipet		Ú.						4	1

Figure 32 - Page of DUOS uTemp datasource variables

### **DUOS MultiTemp**

**DUOS MultiTemp** datasources link the **DUOS MultiTemp** transmitter with **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are "Internal Temperature", "Temperature 1", "Temperature 2", "Temperature 3", "Temperature 4" and "Temperature 5".



eate datasou	roe							
nijate (	(i) maan							
fortables Plane	perment							( <u>k</u> laget) (+10
-	Kanada	lives	Unline types	alera 1	lagast such a ligar	travula	Conserval Places	
H 1.	Period	5=C						+ + + 1
	Januar Medal	240	ului					2 4 1
m 5	829		14	Depted willware (Phys)				+ + + + +
	Communication Bullet	O	uter .	Secret (c)				++21
a .	Depared Trans.	Q	1844	Annes (10				1 4 1 1
	Rosel Lapidy Hillinge	+	maa	Index (p)				+ + / 1
#	Tenvora Kostel	(m)	Sang					+ + 2 1
m 5	fordward /todaye	245	Sera					2.4.1
1 × 1	internal king out as	8	Not.	(leger roles (%))				+ + 1
1 B	Companiary 1	8	Heek .	Degra schare (*1)				2 + 1
10 II.	fanyandari 2	8	Nut.	Dagwa askim (*C)				+ + / 1
a 12	Texp encire 3	8	loe -	Segree celtar (RC)		S.		201
1 D	Texpandors 4	8	Teat.	Depres onlyin (*C)				2.4.7
	Texpestion D	8	rive-	(segues celcas: (ec)		<u>_</u> .	1.4	+ + 1

Figure 33 - Page of DUOS MultiTemp datasource variables

## PLUS

The datasource configuration with the **PLUS** type is intended for the integration of transmitter from **Tekon Electronics** PLUS product family. The variables initially set in this datasource model only refer to the transmitter information, where variables like "*RSSI*", "*Communication Period*", "*Power Supply Voltage*" and others are already set.

The integration of variables that transpose process monitoring into **Tekon IoT Platform** is custom made using generic variables, where you define the type of data, the units corresponding to the monitoring process and the appropriate formula for converting data values measured for the desired unit.

	incerces .	> () vanities									
	bles Man							~		0	
	Pasition	Variable	3008	Value type	unit	Input value type	Portaula	Decimal Places	t inport)	(+	
10	3	Secial Number	90	Lthr#					+ +		
8	. 2	Midel	26	154					2.4	1.1	
	3	1555	-atl	but.	Decive milwatts (dire)				1.4	11	
		Communication Period	O	starm	Seconda (i)				1.1	. 1	
	5	Etopsed Time	O	Unit	Seconds (s)				+ +	1	
8		Power Staply Voltage	4	Ficat	Volta (V)				+ 4	1	
	2	Paraware version	56	Strang							
		Radivale Version	240	mag						. 1	

Figure 34 - Page of PLUS datasource variables



## PLUS 1AI

**PLUS 1AI** datasources relate the **PLUS 1AI** transmitter to the **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are "*Internal Temperature*", "*Analog Input 1*" and "*DO: Remote Output*". The first variable is recorded by the transmitter's internal temperature probe. The last two references are related to the value of the analog input and the remote output, respectively.

0	Properties	) () Vareste									
Variab	oles Mark	igement						(3	input)	G	t Al
	Positilina	Variable	low	Value type	lant	Input value type	Formula	Decimal Places		Action	
0	1	Serial Number	246	Lant	3	15	14		Ť	φ.	e
	1	HODE	240	USH					4	4 )	1
80	3	8951	l	1st	Decide (millivates (dBm)				Ť	4 1	1
	а.	Communication Period	O	Unt	Seconds (1)				个	2.5	1
	5	Elopocal Time	O	10rd	feranda (s)				Ŧ	3.	,
		Power Supply Watage	+	Hair	volts (v)				÷.	φ.,	1
	+	Persone Version	5.6	ening					+	4.9	1
.0		Hardseas Vehicari	2.6	string					Φ.	413	1
		Internal Temperature	8	Heat	Depreschien (N2			Second 7 days	Ť	÷.,	,
	10	Andra June 1.	۵	300					19	ε.	,
0	п	DO: Renota Output	o	2001					Φ	ψ,	,

Figure 35 - Page of PLUS 1AI datasource variables

## PLUS 2AI

**PLUS 2AI** datasources relate the **PLUS 2AI** transmitter to the **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are "*Internal Temperature*", "*Analog Input 1*", "*Analog Input 2*" and "*DO: Remote Output*". The first variable is recorded by the transmitter's internal temperature probe. The remaining 3 references are related to the value of the analog inputs and the remote output, respectively.



0	names	> 🕖 Vanides							
arial	bles Man	gement						(*	input) (+ wi
	Position	Veriable	fcore	Value type	thát	Input while type	Formula	Decimal Places	Actions
	£.,	Secol Number	96	. Gre					+ + 2 1
	. 2	Paid	243	LTH/					1411
	3	MC251	l	Int	tradiel enforces (dea)				1411
÷.		Concention <del>N</del> ext	C	casi	iseconic (n)	G			2 4 2 1
10	\$	Espad Tex	O	Las:	Seconda (a)	8			+ + # I
8	6	Pover Supply Village	5	Flat	NO TO (V)				241
10	2	Firmwere Version	500	Sing		2	1.5		1 + 1 1
	- (8)	Rechare Vesian	36	String	3			×	2 4 2 1
	9	Streened Temperature	8	maat	Degrae cetalss (PC)	di la constante		Roud 16.9.	1 + 1 1
	10	Analog 24(p.K.1	æ	Uter					* + / 1
	ú,	Antiko Shauk 2	ø	Cont					+ + 2 1
0	12	DO: Remote Output	O	Bost					* * / 1

Figure 36 - Page of PLUS 2AI datasource variables

## PLUS 1DI

**PLUS 1DI** datasources relate the **PLUS 1DI** transmitter to the **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are "*Internal Temperature*", "*Pulse Counter 1*", "*DO: Remote Output*", "*Reset Pulse Counter 1*" and "*Digital Input 1 State*". The first variable is recorded by the transmitter's internal temperature probe. The remaining references are related to the value of the digital input when used as a pulse counter, of the remote output, reset of the pulse count and status of the digital input, respectively.

•	dataso Nortes	> (3) Variations						<i>,</i>	
	Position	Variabin	lean	Value type	Unit	linguat value: type	Formala	Bodinal Places	E boot) (+ as Actions
	1	secial number	200	usa pe				-	1 4 1
	2	19502	200	VER					+ + + 1
i.	3	8951	all	(et	Decibici milli Astos (difim)				041
8		Communication Period	0	Ubr	Seconds (s)				000
ł.	5	Especi Tine	O	in-i	Seconds (x)				200
ź.		www.soppy.volaap	+	Hat	waits (v)				241
8	÷.	HIRAR WINDS	5mC	Neurog	12			13	1000
8		Katheas Valuet	3.6	Stimg					* * * *
		blend Impedate	8	tos.	Depres schutz (PC)			Road & sign	741
	10	Print Garder 1	æ	064					241
8	11	D0: Reside Dapat	•	feet	82		14	12	+ U / 1
ŧ.	.12	Reset Pale Gautin 1	C	Real					241
8	13	Digital Incut i State	O	Bool					+ +
110									+ Poyout

Figure 37 - Page of PLUS 1DI datasource variables



## PLUS 2DI

**PLUS 2DI** datasources relate the **PLUS 2DI** transmitter to the **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are "Internal Temperature", "Pulse Counter 1", "Pulse Counter 2", "DO: Remote Output", "Reset Pulse Counter 1", "Reset Pulse Counter 2", "Digital Input 1 State" and "Digital Input 2 State". The first variable is recorded by the transmitter's internal temperature probe. The remaining references are related to the value of the digital inputs when used as pulse counters, the remote output, resetting the pulse count of the digital inputs and states of the digital inputs, respectively.

ariables Ma	agement						G	twoot) (+A
B Position	Variations	acen	Value type	UYIR	Zogut sular type	Portrola	Decimal Places	Actions
11 L.	Secial Munice	SmC	itim:	1				+ + *
1 - E	Nodel	(in)	ine.	-		2	24 24	↑ ↓ <i>I</i>
H 2	4351	ad	Dis.	Decitive in Illineacia (2011)		12		+ + 2
a	Communication Period	٩	idan.	Seconds (8)				↑ ↓ X
	Depend Trate	٩	uter	Seconds (s)	57.5	35.7		1 V P
1.1	Povert Supply Walkspe	4	Flort	Volta (V)				1 4 d
8 7		QuÇ	58/10					+ + +
	Hardware Varsios	juç	String					↑ ↓ <i>I</i>
8.4	Internal Temperature	8	Flort	(legere coles er (PC)			Round 7 d.p.	+ 4 I
II 10	Note Dearler 1	a	uter.					+ + <b>/</b>
II 11	eutre-counter y	æ	une	82 - C		141	92 - C	+ + I
0 0	CER Home to Chapat	•	Heel					141
8 B.	Reset Puber Usuates 1	Ð	Deal					+ + <b>/</b>
II 14	Renet Public Countert 2	O	Dol			10		+ + 1
		-	Desi	4	1.1	2	2	141
8 15	Depts/Digut.1 Size	•						

Figure 38 - Page of PLUS 2DI datasource variables

## PLUS 1UT

**PLUS 1UT** datasources relate the **PLUS 1UT** transmitter to the **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are *"Internal Temperature", "External Temperature 1"* and *"DO: Remote Output"*. The first variable is recorded by the transmitter's internal temperature probe. The last two references are related to the value of the external temperature input and the remote output, respectively.



2200	e datasc	-									
aria	bles Man	agement						(	± inest )	G	- 14
	Position	Variable	toos	Value type	uvik	Input value type	formula	Decimal Places		Actien	
88	- E -	Secol Namber	300	1.841					¢	4.	,
0	2	Made	340	UH-					Φ	4.9	1
		R90		lor.	Under will watts (20m)				Ψ	4.4	,
		Communication Period	0	LEA	Seconds (s)				Φ.	4.1	
10	s	Elspand Tare	٩	ulini.	Seconds (4)	*		3	Ť	de d	
.0	6	Power Suppr Voltage	+	rives	Voti (V)				+	4.5	r :
10	7	Permutane Version	300	\$210					Ť	4.7	,
		Fordware Version	340	2010					Φ	4.1	
н		3-ferred Temperature	8	Post	Cogram celulus (*C)	•		Roand J d p.	Ť	ψ,	,
	(D	External Temperature 1	8	Plost	Degree celdus (PC)			Roand J.d.p.	Φ.	5.	•
	н	DO: Receipte Output	O	0uu	2: 	£	84	2	Ť	4.4	,
Rep									C- Previous		-

Figure 39 - Page of PLUS 1UT datasource variables

## PLUS 2UT

**PLUS 2UT** datasources relate the **PLUS 2UT** transmitter to the **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are "*Internal Temperature*", "*External Temperature* 1", "*External Temperature* 2" and "*DO: Remote Output*". The first variable is recorded by the transmitter's internal temperature probe. The remaining references are related to the value of the temperature inputs and the remote output, respectively.

	datasc	~										
rial	ales Mana	agement						(	± man	C	t e	-
	asition	Variable	icon	Volue type	Unit	Import value type	Formula	Decimal Places		Actio		
8	1	Seriel Number	500	USIK					τ	4	1	1
	2	Hote	)e(	Ulint					Ť	4	1	1
84	1	650	tl	Tet	Decilial rolliverts (dBm)				Ŧ	4	1	1
8	4	Communitation Period	O	1014	Seconds (a)				Ŧ	4	1	1
	,	elapsed time	G	UPR.	socords (c)				τ	+	e	1
8	6	Power Supply voltage	4	Flast	(d) they				Ť	403	2	1
8	2	Renward Wittlen	500	Linna					Ť	4	ï	1
		Hardware Virsion	500	Sterg					Ť	4	1	3
4	•	Internal temperature	8	rice	the give column $\langle \mathcal{R}_{i}^{c}\rangle$			Hard 1-0p.	Ť	4	1	i.
8		extented temperature t	8	+ior	(segue celuia: (#c)	-		Root 169.		4	,	-
	38	Anional (Ampression)	8	164	Degrae polares (PC)			Hound 1 d.p.	Ť	ψ.	1	1
8	12	DO: Remote Output	0	Bool		÷			Φ	4.	1	1
200									+ Peakur		c	

Figure 40 - Page of PLUS 2UT datasource variables



## PLUS 4AI

**PLUS 4AI** datasources relate the **PLUS 4AI** transmitter to the **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are "*Internal Temperature*", "*Analog Input 1*", "*Analog Input 2*", "*Analog Input 3*", "*Analog Input 4*", "*DO: Remote Output*", "*DO : External Power*" and "*DI: Comm Trigger*". The first variable is recorded by the transmitter's internal temperature probe. The following four references are related to the value of the four analog inputs. The last three variables are related to the remote output, the digital output for external power and the digital communication trigger input.

2	Properties.	> (a) vieradae							
ariat	iles Man:	ogement						(	Lincort) (+/
1.3	NUMBER	Variation	100.0	Varie type	saint	Disput value type	formula	Decimal Places	Actions
н	1	Sevel Number	200	illeit					~ + 1
0	2	ман	200	Ulini		1.4	<u></u>	-	↑ 4 <i>1</i>
10	3	RISI	II	L/L	Decides millionitic (dDin)			2	↑ ↓ <i>₽</i>
	4	Contributication Period	O	ubrit .	Seconds (3)				7 4 1
ы	5	Eleged Time	O	uber	Seconds (s)				240
н.	4	Power Supply Holbage	+	Plot:	Volta (V)			18	2 4 1
8	1	Milmware karsien	9×C	52.940					↑ ↓ ≠
8	8.	Hardware Version	200	string					241
8		Interna Tomponisture	8	Rott	Dearee colorun (#C)			Round L 4ct.	
	10	Aving 1	æ	Ulet					731
	ù.	Arabg 1	Ø	uset					+ 4 /
8	12	Aralog 1	æ	Ulett					141
1	13	Aratiog 4	Ð	U2H1					441
	14	Dix Remete Output	o	Bool					141
	15	DO: External Power	•	500i					+ 4 P
8	15	00 Cores Trigge	Ð	0046			12 12	2	741
5411									6-Presican

Figure 41 - Page of PLUS 4AI datasource variables

## PLUS 4AI4DI1UT

**PLUS 4AI4DI1UT** datasources relate the **PLUS 4AI4DI1UT** transmitter to the **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are "*Internal Temperature*", "*Analog Input 1*", "*Analog Input 2*", "*Analog Input 3*", "*Analog Input 4*", "DO: Remote Output", "DO : External Power "," DI: Comm Trigger "," Digital Input 1 "," Digital Input 2 "," Digital Input 3" and "Digital Input 4". The first variable is recorded by the transmitter's internal temperature probe. The following four references are related to the value of the four analog inputs. The following three variables are related to the remote output, the digital output for external power and the digital communication trigger input. The last four variables are related to the value of the value of the value of the digital inputs.



eate	datasc	sitce							
ariab	les Hana	gement							( <u>*</u> 2401) (+ 4
	esitios	Variable	Ecos)	Value type	048	Taput velue type	Formade	Declaral Places	ócilan
*	).	The California	(m)	104					2.0.2
8	2	Model	(m)	um.					2.4.1
	3	9.92		Dre	Decise allivers (dim)			1	2 4 1
	*	Colorin stat as Period	0	stiet	(ecceda (a)				2.4.2
8	3	Glopoce Time	0	Lan	lioconda (c)	14	(+II)	(19)	241
		Town Supply Writige	+	Tied	(0) etci				+ + 1
8	1	Certificate Values	500	String					++1
		Handroos Westine	3=6	Orieg					949
я.	ж.	Internal Yemperature	9	Fac	Degree online [Nf]			found 1 dip.	* * /
	10	Analog 1	æ	ulet					+ - 1
		Asalog 2	æ	ine)					
		Analog 2	æ	uar					+ + 1
н.	18	Asebg 4	æ	(Det					2.47
а.	ii .	.00: Ranota Detper	C	Des					241
н.	15	DO: Openal Poper	•	Des					+ + 1
	15	Oci Carrier Tregger	ø	Ser.					
н.	17	DigitalDyset 4	•	Per					
а.	iu l	Diplotopot 2	•	Les.					241
н.	10	DigitalDes#3	•	Des					241
	20	DeptstDepts +	o	Dex					* + 1
card)									+ 4004

Figure 42 Page of PLUS 4AI4DI1UT datasource variables

## **PLUS TWPH-1UT**

**PLUS TWPH-1UT** datasources relate the **PLUS TWPH-1UT** transmitter to the **Tekon IoT Platform**. In this model, the variables enabled with editing properties are *"Internal Temperature"* and *"External Temperature"*. The first variable is recorded by the transmitter's internal temperature probe. The other variable records the temperature value registered at the temperature input.

ate	dataso	arce									
0	-tep:	) (3) Vacantas									
srial	ales Mana	gement							(± inent)	G	+ 30
	roottice	variaties	1004	watur typo	unit	report value type	Pressio	rieciwał #lacoc		Active	
4	4	Secul Secolus	300	034							e.
	7	Wolfer	500	0.004						4 Q	ř.
	2	A900		int .	(with entry (div)				*		r
•		Development with Pariset	0	Atter	Seconda (a)				1	5.	ë.
		Dapsed Time	0	. 004	Second ()					њ. ;	ē
		Forme Sacoly Wittoo	5	rist.	with (V)					÷. 3	į.
		Departure Version	340	strag					÷.	5.9	è
ŧ.		La River Version	340	strong						4.	ê
		Tikewa Tengesikat	8	ritat	Degree version (PC)			Revel 1 de	9		,
	-59	Const Temperate	8	Rist	Texare cessos (PC)			Rand's #4	10	e 1	1
									- Fanica -		ċ

Figure 43 - Page of PLUS TWPH-1UT datasource variables



# **Datasources listing**

Inside the platform, after click on **DATASOURCES** menu, the user has access to the listing of all datasources entered in the system. In this section, changes can be made to the datasources already configured and view their status.

e	A MAT
Communication # Veriable	de I Actions
💥 universi valuente 🧐	
0	
<b>O</b> • • • • • •	
	Osmansiadan 1 Veriat X uniter south Ø O sentes

Figure 44 - Datasources page

In cases where the list of datasources is longer, you can use the "Search" field to search for datasources by name.

At the top of the list is a summary of the datasources present on the platform. This summary shows the number of datasources and their communication states and operating mode.

<b>a</b> 3	<b>Ø</b> 2	0	3 1	() O
Total number of datasources	Datasources properly connected	Datasources with warning alarms	Datasources with error alarms	Datasources disabled

Figure 45 -	Datasources	overview
-------------	-------------	----------

The listing of configured datasources on **Tekon IoT Platform** can be filtered by the options described above. The described states work as buttons and can be used to create filters for the presentation of datasources.



Figure 46 - Datasources filters



## **Datasources actions**

In the elements that go with the datasource list, there are actions that can be uniquely applied to each of the elements listed.



Figure 47 - Datasources listing options

NOTE: when datasources are disabled, the options are modified so that they can be enabled again.



Figure 48 - Options with datasource listing activation

Let's describe the function of each of the action icons:




## **Datasource status**

The datasources presented on the platform are subject to user interaction and technical communication failures that may affect their operational state. To represent all of these states, the platform displays notifications about the condition of each datasource in real time.

The different state types are catalogued based on operating conditions:

- If datasources are active or inactive;
- If there are active alarms related to communication related events;
- If there are active alarms linked to events related to variable registers;

	arces list			а —	ħ			
	Datosource *	Date #	Communication #	Variable #		Action	ŝ.	
10 3	> bubsicbe		() assessed	() and the				
0 3	DRIDS TREAP SAT AND	11/08/2009 9/94/21 WY	O	O			5	
0.5	Generic dataoource		0	0-		1	9	

Figure 49 - Different datasources status

Possible status for user viewing transmits information of different patterns. In the upper image, you can see the examples that can define the states of datasources.

	Communication	Variable
X WITHOUT ALARMS	The datasource is active and none of the associated inactivity alarms is ative.	The datasource is active and none of the associated value alarms is ative.
U INACTIVE	The datasource is inactive and the associated alarms will not be processed.	The datasource is inactive and the associated alarms will not be processed.
<b>WARNING</b>	The datasource has a <i>Warning</i> category alarm, of <i>Inactivity</i> type that is active.	The datasource has a <i>Warning</i> category alarm, of <i>Value</i> type, that is active.
ERROR	The datasource has an <i>Error</i> category alarm, of <i>Inactivity</i> type, that is active.	The datasource has an <i>Error</i> category alarm, of <i>Value</i> type, that is active.
📀 ок	Datasource communication has no problems	The values measured in the variables did not triggered any alarms.

Table 1 – Descriptive table of states and meanings



## **Datasource details**

At **Tekon IoT Platform**, you can access detailed information from each datasource. This feature allows you to view the exact values of all variables defined in your configuration.

In the datasources list, obtained from the **DATASOURCES** main menu, click on the datasource row from which you want to access the details.

tase	bur	ces									e	400 (008	ena.er
18	-	3 02	0 0	O 9 () 1									
atas	our	ces list								Q bert			
		Dufasente *			Date 0				Communication #	Variable: 4		citons	
	>	0405 002			с.				() meme	() serve			
	~	DUOS TEMP SUT FAQ			11/15/2015	2147338-811			0-	0-		10	
		Model	3	Server Nodel		1	RSSI	-2) d5r)	Communication Period		.5+		
		Elapsed Time:	0 5	Power Supply Voltage		5.2 W	Firmusare Version	"3.0. <b>8</b> "	Hardware Version		37		
		Internal Reciperature	23.6 °C	External Temperature		23.6.0C							
	>	Generic difasticata							<b>O</b> OH	<b>O</b> ••		1 0	
10 -		Page 1 of 1								« (	0	5	39

Figure 50 – Datasources detailed information

A box will show up containing the detailed information of the datasource, organized by variables.

### **Data types**

The data collected and available for visualization on the platform have characteristic formats of the corresponding variables. When choosing or defining a variable type, it must be associated with a data type. Of the existing data formats, **Tekon IoT Platform** offers five types.

+ Add variable	×
* Required fields	
Name *	
Type a name	
Value type *	
Select value type	•
Select value type	
Float	
Int	
UInt	
String	
Bool	
Formula	
Limit number of decimal place	
	Cancel Save

Figure 51 - Example of data type selection



#### Float

*Float* data types store real numbers, they refer to numeric values with decimal places. In this context, it is a decimal type with an accuracy of 28 or 29 digits.

#### Int

*Int* data types store integers, separated between negative and positive numbers. This type of data applies, for example, to record signal strength values in dBm, which is traditionally a negative integer value. In the lower data categories of this data type, the implemented one was the type *Int32* that presents a variation of -2,147,483,648 to 2,147,483,647.

#### UInt

**Unt** are datasets of numeric origin, but varying from 0 to 4,294,967,295, resulting only in positive numeric values. A common use of this type of data is in the communication time log, with a time unit of seconds.

#### String

*String* is the data type used when the value to be reached is alphanumeric strings. For example, the listing of the hardware and firmware version should occur using this data type.

#### Bool

**Bool** data type accepts logical values of "true" or "false" type. Its use may be appropriate for event detection, where verification focuses on whether the action happens or not.



## **WIDGETS**

Widgets are tools designed to translate the information collected by sensors into a visual format. Widgets can be added at any time by any user through the menu at the top of the dashboard.



Figure 52 - Available widgets

The widgets available come in different formats and looks to better meet user's needs. Within the available formats, the user can configure widgets from the type:

## Datasource behaviour over time

This widget allows you to have more than one variable represented on the same chart. To define the time interval of logged data you want to represent, a time interval can be set based on hours, days, weeks, months or years.



Figure 53 - Example of a timeline graph

After configuring the widget, you can interact with the chart, doing some actions:

- Hide and show each variable;
- Zoom-in and zoom-out directly on the timeline;





Figure 54 - Timeline chart with hidden variables

## Configuration

	<b>6</b> 94	(2) Configure utilizet Industance behavior over time	х 🔘 нин -
	DUOS Hy	Widged Elie*	
	1245	(press for sweight file)	
*Inter B #0	Tempe	Variables"	
	-xem	Dataweeren Varlabien Description Scale Hin Naz Color Actions	245
Diffinger/Sep 8 4	8218-	No vertibilitie configured	
1		Additional      Transletish band In chart      Transletish band In chart      Transletish band In chart      Transletish      You Lake	
	-	(s ) (hai (s) • )	
	(Hend)	n (and a) (a da a) (a	-52 dBm -52 dBm mini-66 kar mini-66 kar

Figure 55 - Widget configuration

	a	unliguru widqət Datasını	rer betrækker over tilere					×		🌒 atter i
Antonio Alo	DUOS Hy Tempe	e vielget titte						-	(ANTARK)	000
(milamas a) Dics Hyn / Arað (e)	egan Batana egan (Dock)	nas navnave) -	Variables	Beambalion	Scale	Nis Ha	c Dalar	Actions		
	these of the second sec	is frank in chart sustain when in the proc to thresholds banks config	Min	na no st. la shera an Mez	Galer		Actions	A		***
	-c.tr		,	•)			( 0006.)		trans tra	
	Carry of	1 1	netodijeren		(a) (20)	O <sup>s</sup> duman	-	-52 <sup>dBm</sup>	G.10	.43 <sup>V</sup>

Figure 56 - Widget variables configuration



## **Configure chart widget**

- 1. Define widget title.
- 2. Select a datasource and a variable.
- 3. If you want to customize the variable name, change the "Description" field.
- 4. If you want to customize the scale of the selected variable, in the "Scale" field, select "Manual" option and define minimum and maximum values of scales. By default, the scale is adjusted automatically, through the minimum and maximum values recorded in time interval that will be stipulated in the chart.
- 5. Select the color of the line that will represent the variable.
- 6. Click on 🕑 to validate the variable configuration.
- 7. Repeat the previous steps to add more variables.
- 8. Optionally, you can add threshold bands associated with the configured variables. Click on "Add brand" to add more bands to the chart.
  - a. Click on "Variable" list and select a variable.
  - b. Set a minimum variable value.
  - c. Set a maximum variable value.
  - d. Select the band colour.
- 9. Define a time interval for the data that will be on the chart. It is possible to set an interval in hours, days, weeks, months or years.

NOTE: the longer the defined interval, the system will take more time to load data and update chart when there is new data.



Figure 57 - Charts with threshold bands



## Graphical data export plug-in

In this application, the export of data related to the graph and the information that is generating it can be done through a plug-in provided with the graph for this purpose.

You can choose to save only the graphic, as an image, in a file with .JPG, .SVG or .PDF formats.

NOTE: user can choose which graphic lines to show in the file to export.



Figure 58 - Timeline graph plug-in

With this plug-in, the user has a chance to access the information that is originating the chart. The information will always be exported as a data list, separated by datasource, in a file with .CSV, .XLSX or .JSON formats.



Figure 59 - Data export through plug-in

NOTE: no user has permissions to configure this type of export. The information is fully selected.



## Datasource variable value

Defines a frame with the representation of only one variable chosen by the user through an icon associated with the variable context, name and the collected value.

External Temperature	•••
24.6° <sup>℃</sup>	
C 11/25/2019 11:35 AM	

Figure 60 - Interface of single value widget

This widget lets the user to know the measured value as well as the date and time corresponding to the last record.

After defining the datasource that will serve as the basis for returning the desired value, a list with all the variables set for the chosen datasource is displayed. The user can now choose the desired variable, assign a name to the widget and choose the most appropriate representative icon.

2 Configure widget Data	source variable value
Which datasource will be anal	lysing?*
(Belect	
Widget title	
Select below the widgets you w	ant to add to dashboard
Variable to be analyzed* Select a datasource to see variables	Variable associated icon
	(No Image)
	cancel add widget

Figure 61 - Main window of widget configuration



DUOS TEMP IOT FAQ	× -
Widget title	
Select below the widgets you w	ant to add to dashboard
Variable to be analyzed*	Variable associated icon
Model	
Sensor Model	
RSSI Communication Period	
Elapsed Time	( (No Image) 🔹
Power Supply Voltage	
Firmware Version	
Hardware Version	
Internal Temperature	
External Temperature	

Figure 62 - Widget variable selection

## **Datasource variable value (gauge)**

It defines a frame with the gauge representation of only one variable chosen by the user, where he can set safety intervals represented by customizable colours for each one.



Figure 63 - Gauge widget interface

Like the **Datasource variable value** widget, in this frame you can also know the date and time of the last record.

#### Configuration

The parameters for the widget configuration are divided in four points:

- Widget name;
- Datasource selection that provides the variable;
- Represented variable;



• Representative value ranges;

The widget configuration form looks like the example below.

\$

Figure 64 - Gauge widget configuration

The definition of the value ranges serves to set reference values for the chosen variable and customizable according to the process in which it is included. To enter more references values, click **Add intermediate points**. The representation of values ranges in this widget is limited by a maximum of five reference ranges.

	title*				
enter	the widget	title			
Which e	datasource	e will be	analysi	ng?*	
Select.	22				*
Variabl	e to be an	alyzed*			
select					•
Chart p	roperties"	E) I			
Value ra	nge betwee	m			
0	and	0			
0	and	0			
0	and	0	DI		
0	and	0	Di		
0	and	0	D		
× clear					

Figure 65 - Widget ranges

Each range has an associated colour that will be represented on the widget interface. This colour can be changed by the user, through a frame that allows the choice by several methods:

• Manual colour selection;



- RGB colour coding;
- Hexadecimal code;
- Default colours already defined;
- Degree of transparency for the selected colour;



Figure 66 – Selection of range colours

NOTE: the set values of the ranges must follow a logical guideline. For this, the first value of a range must match the last value of a previously defined range. The upper range limit is unique, meaning this value is not within range. There can be no gap failures or gap overlaps.

0	and	10			
10	and	15			
15	and	20			
20	and	25			
25	and	30			

Figure 67 - Example of a range configuration

If the setting range does not follow the value assignment logic, the fields will be marked with an error and a message that states a configuration problem that blocks the conclusion of the operation.



>	and (5	💌 oc 💻		
5	× and 10	× •c		
11	x and 15	×) «C		
16	x and zo	× oc 🗾		
21	x and 25	•		

Figure 68 - Range configuration error

To reset the configuration, click on **Clear** and the default configuration is restored.

## **Active alarm list**

The user can consult a list of alarms, referring to a datasource or dataset. It displays a log for each active alarm.

If an alarm is triggered, an item in the list is automatically created consisting of:

- Date and time of alarm;
- Alarm category (error or warning);
- Datasource providing alarm;
- The value that triggered the alarm;
- Alarm description (the variable and the factor set to trigger the alarm).

Date	Category	Datasource	Value	Description	
11/06/2019 11:32 AM	▲ warning	DUOS TEMP IOT FAQ		5 second(s)	
11/04/2019 2:50 PM	🛦 warning	DUOS TEMP IOT FAQ	23,4	External Temperature < 23.6	
11/04/2019 2:44 PM	(8 ептог	DUOS TEMP IOT FAQ	23,9	External Temperature < 24	
11/04/2019 2:44 PM	A warning	DUOS TEMP IOT FAQ	23,9	External Temperature < 24	

Figure 69 - Alarm list widget

# NOTE: clicking on the name of the datasource that appears in the list redirects you to a list of alarms associated to the datasource.

In the configuration you can choose one or more datasources, the list/widget name and the maximum number of registers it will be listed.



2 Configure widget Active alarms list	×
Which datasource will be analysing?*	
(Select Select all	-)
Widget title	~
enter the widget title	)
Number of entries to be shown*	
Cance	add widget
cance	

Figure 70 - Configuration of alarm list widget

## Active alarms overview

You can configure this widget to present the number of alarms, when activated, for a datasource or dataset.



Figure 71 - Alarms overview widget

Alarm numbers are grouped by alarm category – Error or Warning.

Clicking on the alarm type icons will redirect you to an alarm history page built with the information. You can find more information about the alarm history feature on the **HISTORY** tab.



2 Configure widget Active	e alarms overview	×
Which datasource will be analy	rsing?*	•
Select all Widget title enter the widget title		
	cancel add	widget

Figure 72 - Configuration of active alarms overview widget

## Data table

In this widget, the user can consult real-time data in a table format.

Darbat -	Temperature (PC) 8	Humidiky (%) 8	Internal Temp. (°C) 0	RSSI (dBm) 0	Voltage (V) 0	
11/09/2021 10:03 AM	30.32	31	30.32	-60	10.53	
11/09/2021 10:02 AM	12.6	21	12.6	-70	10.8	
11/09/2021 10:01 AM	39.52	17	39.52	-97	10.46	
11/09/2021 10:00 AM	28.63	3	28.63	-12	9.B	
11/09/2021 9:59 AM	753	66	7.53	-72	10.38	
1/09/2021 9:58 AM	13.68	80	13.68	-93	10.33	
L1/0602021 9:57 AM	1,38	18	1.38	-63	10.87	
1/09/2021 9:56 AM	33.69	41	33.69	-35	11.42	

Figure 73 - Data Table widget

#### Configuration

The parameters for configuring the widget are divided into 6 points:

- Widget name
- Selection of the datasource that has the intended variable
- Variable that will be represented
- Aggregation type
- Aggregation interval
- Number of entries to display in the table
- Time intervals of displayed logs

The widget configuration window looks like the example below.



Widget title*			
Inter the widget title			
Variables*			
Datasources	Variables	Description	Actions
No variables configured			
+ Add variable			
Agregation type*			
Average •			
Agregation interval*			
1 hour •			
Number of entries			
Time interval*			
(1) (hour (s)		•)	
			cancel add widge

Figure 74 - Configuration of data table widget

Selecting variables will add columns to the widget table. Click on **Add variable** to select the datasource that has the variable you want to include in the data table. You can edit the description of the variable that will be used from the top of the column.

Variables*			
Datasources	Variables	Description	Actions
DUOS HYGROTEMP 1	• External Temperati •	Temperature	) ^ ¥ 🖻
DUOS HYGROTEMP 1	• Humidity •	Humidity	) <b>†</b> + <b>1</b>
Agregation type*			
1 hour			
Agregation Interval* 1 hour Number of entries Time interval*			

Figure 75 - Datasources for data table

The aggregation method allows to obtain various insights of process granularity. In the aggregation segment, you can configure the aggregation type – **Without aggregation**, **Average, Maximum, Minimum** and **Median** - and the aggregation interval – **30 seconds, 1 minute, 15 minutes, 30 minutes, 1 hour, 12 hours, 1 day, 1 week, 1 month** and **1 year** - to apply to data.



Titulo da ferramenta*					
introduza o nome da ferra	enta				
Variāveis"					
Datasources	Variáveis		Descrição	Ações	
DUOS HYGROTEMP 1	External Ten	nperati 🔹	Temperatura	) + +	Û
DUOS HYGROTEMP 2	Humidity	•	Humidade	↑ ↓	
+ Adiconar variável					
Tipo de agregação*					
Média					
Intervalo de agregação*					
1 hora ·	2				
30 segundos					
1 minuto 15 minutos					
30 minutos					
1 hora					
12 horas 1 dia					
1 semana					
	•				
1 mês 1 ano					

Figure 76 - Aggregation methods for data table widget

The number of entries will define the maximum number of records to be displayed in the widget. Whenever a new record is available, the oldest one is removed from the table. The time interval is the time span between the first and last record to be displayed in the table.

introduza o nome da ferramenta			
Variáveis*			
Datasources	Variáveis	Descrição	Ações
DUOS HYGROTEMP 1	External Temperat.	Temperatura	) ↑↓ 🖻
DUOS HYGROTEMP 2	• Humidity •	Humidade	↑ ↓ ∅
Adicionar variável Tipo de agregação* Média			
Tipo de agregação* Média • Intervalo de agregação* 1 hora •			
Tipo de agregação* Média • Intervalo de agregação*			
Tipo de agregação* Média • Intervalo de agregação* 1 hora • ✔ Número de entradas			

Figure 77 - Number of entries for data table widget



## Widgets options

All widgets that are available on **Tekon IoT Platform**, once configured and deployed in dashboards, have options that allow user interaction.



Figure 78 - Widgets options available at dashboards

- **Refresh** update widget information;
- Edit change widget configuration;
- **Clone** clone all the widget configurations, except widget name;
- **Remove** remove the widget from the dashboard;
- **Restore default size** resize the widget frame to the original format and size;

## **Graphical environment customization**

The dashboards graphic environment can be customizable through the arrangement of widgets. The scrolling of the various widgets is performed by *drag and drop* in the desired position. The size of widgets is adjustable to allow the users to create a balanced graphic environment or to simply highlight the desired information.



## **USER MANAGEMENT**

Users are the main elements interacting with **Tekon IoT Platform**. The management of all processes of configuration, visualization and data export is up to you and should be regulated. The user management who may have access to the platform is divided into three control categories but related to each other.

To find the page where user management is done, go to *Settings >> Administration*.

### **Users permissions**

Permissions define each user's degree of access to each area of the platform. Permission categories can be classified in two ways:

#### Access / Visualization

There are areas of the platform that have access and view permissions. These are divided into three parameters:

• **No Access** – access restricted. You will not have access to this area of the site and will be notified with a message informing you of the interdiction;

- View access is limited, the use is only allowed to view the information;
- Full control user has full access and control of all functionalities to the assigned area;

dit Profile	
lot below the properties of the profile to be edited	
* The marked iteres are enarchitery	
Profile same *	
J largest settings from another profile	
Permissions	
Permassions Permassions to access the Telan InT Platform portsi	
Adventuation	No Access 👻
Configurations	Ves •
Alarim configurations	Pull Control +
Alams faitay	Pull Control +
Laboration	Ves +
Dealtoreds	Ven +
Déa	Ven *
Percent wes - Dange password	
Permissions to send data via APC for Determination	

Figure 79 - Page of permissions management



#### **Functionalities**

Access to functionalities through validation boxes.

Personal area - charge parament	
Prevention to medidate via NPI for Datasectore	

Figure 80 - Validation boxes of functionalities

### **User profile**

The configuration of user profiles defines the interaction parameters of this type of user on the platform. Permissions management for users who were or will be created begins on this page and can always be edited later.

Based on the different demands and applications where the platform can be used, **Tekon IoT Platform** comes with pre-configured user profiles and assigned permissions.

Below there is a comparative map of the diverse profiles and permissions that describes them.

Áreas Perfil	Access to Tekon IoT Platform	Administration	Configurations	Alams Configurations	Alarms History	Datasources	Dashboards	Data	Change Personal Password	Send data via API
Administrator	~	Full Control	Full Control	Full Control	Full Control	Full Control	Full Control	Full Control	<	×
Advanced User	~	No Access	No Access	Full Control	Full Control	Full Control	Full Control	Full Control	~	×
Gateway	×	×	×	×	×	×	×	×	×	>
Restricted User	~	No Access	No Access	View	View	View	View	No Access	>	×
User	~	No Access	No Access	View	Full Control	View	View	Full Control	>	×



#### **Profile parameters**

The parameters of each profile identify it and must be different from the others to create a chain of authority and responsibility that promotes the management and use of **Tekon IoT Platform**.

• Name – set a name to the user profile.

• **Import configurations** – setting-up a user profile can be based on another existing profile. This option allows you to import the permissions configuration of another profile into what is currently being created.



Create Profile		
set below the properties of the profile to be created. * The market form an mandatory		
Profile rates *		
All Tom Unit		
🕼 Ingert settinge from section public		
Select profile to import		
(Sideri a prefer)	•	
Permissions		
I thermologies to access the Tokan Self Hafford ponal		
Remissions to send data via APT for Datassociate		

Figure 81 - Create a user profile

#### Permissions

The permissions of each profile define the hierarchy of access and customization of several areas of the platform as well as the ability to send data via API to datasources.

The access permissions are imposed in the three parameters covered in the **PERMISSIONS** menu and can be set for the following areas:

- Administration;
- Configurations;
- Alarms configurations;
- Alarms history;
- Datasources;
- Dashboards;
- Data;

In the user profile it is possible to define if the user to whom this profile will be assigned will be allowed to change their password to access the **Tekon IoT Platform**.

S Annual Jona - Catago paravel     Annual Anti na AN the Defanancea     Annual Anti na AN the Defanancean	
0	۲

Figure 82 - Options to change password and send data

Permission to send data via API must be enabled if that user profile is associated with the user who provides the **API Key** to configure the connection to the **Tekon IoT Platform** and be able to send data to it.

NOTE: if you only want to create one user to access and use the Tekon IoT Platform, keep this option inactive. Tekon IoT Platform has a system user configured for this purpose only.



## **User profiles list**

Mininistan en teagene in teagene	4	adres
Advandator Advanza Mari Sannay Randan Jan	C	(post (red
Ad ministrativ Adversal Mari Balaning Bedi Dati War	(0.10x0	
Adorati Utori Salaviny Bedicani Utor	Actions	
lanony andon une befores Une	•	
andern som		
ebbed Ser	•	
	-	/ =
M		
	•	

Figure 83 - Page of user profiles

In the *Settings* >> *Administration* >> *Profile Management* page, all currently configured user profiles are listed here.

The actions available for profiles originally predefined by Tekon IoT Platform are limited to

only one – view (  $^{\textcircled{O}}$  ). User managers just can see the permissions setting for each of these elements.

Any profile created by the administrator or user with permissions for that task has more accessible manipulation options.



Figure 84 - User profile options

The first icon ( <sup>(O)</sup>) corresponds to the profile view. Permissions and other parameters can be queried but cannot be edited at all.

The second icon (  $\checkmark$  ) is about edition. Clicking on this option, all fields are shown with the current setting and can be changed by users with admin access permissions.

The third option (

**i** ) e

) enables you to permanently delete this user profile.

NOTE: you cannot delete an user profile that is assigned to at least one user. The platform issues an error that states that this profile is associated with an user.





Figure 85 - Error message accessing pages without permission

## EXTRA NOTE: the options available in user and profile management are subject to the application of permissions to the user using the platform.

#### Users

Users are the main managers of **Tekon IoT Platform**. The creation of user accounts is performed by the Administrator or another user with *Full Control* permissions to the administration areas.

To create a new user, click on **Create User**. All users have characteristic data of an identity.

- Image image chosen by the user for identification;
- Name\* user complete name;
- **Username**\* username to access to the platform;
- **Profile**\* set an user profile with permissions already defined;
- New password\* set a password to access to the platform;
- **Confirm password**\* confirmation of the password set in the previous field;
- Email user email address;
- **Cellphone** user cellphone number;
- **Company** user company name;

#### \* – Required fields

ate Uber		
below the properties of the over to be created to recisel term too machines		
-		
tergener 1		
AND A DECEMBER OF A DECEMBER O		
-		
Press *		
a. •		
en - dut aguño		
o president "		
Control -		
* broasse *		
galanti -		
in the second		
mmaniculturi detalla		
Reg Net 1 to 10 March 10 March 10	tevier II	
3		

Figure 86 - Create User page



NOTE: the user account can be used to connect devices and the platform. When this intention is verified, you must click on "*New Key*" to automatically generate a new *API Key* to work as a communication bridge with the Tekon IoT Platform. The user profile concerned must have permissions that authorize this process.

### **Users list**

In the *Settings* >> *Administration* >> *User Management* page, all configured users on the platform are listed.

iministration (ber Howgerent P	Ale Management)		(+ Oute
			(Q, terest)
Nare	Usestantite	Paulie	A tions
all admits	adrein	Administratur	
1 altimate	stream	Random User	• / • •
T) Based	pateway	Kateway	- / /

Figure 87 - Page of users on Tekon IoT Platform

The user management actions available to the users with full access to this area of the platform are divided into four options.



Figure 88 - Options available to each user register

The first icon (  $^{\textcircled{O}}$  ) enables to view the user information.

The second icon (  $\checkmark$  ) is about edition. Clicking on this option, all fields are shown with the current setting and can be changed.

The third icon ( ") it is possible to change the password to access to the platform.

The last option ( ) it is possible to delete this user from the platform.



### **Recover password**

In case of forgetting the password, user can recover his password.



Figure 89 - Password recovery form

Enter **username** or **email**, to receive an email with password recovery instructions.

NOTE: If an error occurs in the password recovery process, a message will be displayed to the user reporting the failure.

The means years used table Decease an execution of the ball encounter of the ball
Uermani se conil (Instanta se conil
maslandor.
Remon pasawa Ancionar
қулат – налиме ипомида, ал.

Figure 90 - Password recovery error

If the username / email is correct and there is an email server configured for password recovery, a success message will be displayed.



(x •
Instantia and loss     Instantia and loss
Uservans of earl (Iservans of earl <u>)</u>
In the state of th
enclarety particent
© AD1 - BESIMER AUTOMOLĂA, SJ.

Figure 91 - Email for password recorevy has been sent

Go to your email inbox and click on **Recovery** to be redirected to the password recovery page.



Figure 92 - Password recovery email

Fill in the new password definition form. After confirming the match between the two values, the password message successfully retrieved will be displayed.



rekun	EN 🕶
Recovery password	
Fill in the fields below to renew your password.	
Tanked Supplem Seconda	
Contraction of the second region of the second regi	

Figure 93 - New password assigned



## ALARMS

**Tekon IoT Platform** enables users to configure alarms supplemented with notifications so that whenever an event away from the previously set parameters is triggered, the user can be notified of this state. Alarms can be configured to cause email, sms or visual notifications in dashboards. Alarms can be configured individually or in groups, generating an action that focuses in one or more datasources.

## Alarm types

A configuração de alarmes na **Tekon IoT Platform** pode ser diferenciada por dois tipos – valores e inatividade.

#### Value

The configuration of parametrizable alarms with values allows to set which measured values serve as limit point for the alarm. In **Tekon IoT Platform**, value-based alarms have parameters that allow the user to create an alarm with more generic and more specific attributes appropriate for each application.

• **Datasources** – field to select the datasource(s) which we want to focus the alarm.

• **Variable** – field that defines the variable or variables on which the alarm will affect its parameterization. The options available to choose from will depend on the datasource(s) selected;

• **Number of occurrences** – the value of this field defines how many communications checking the alarm parameters will be made until an alarm is triggered;

• **Variable** – field that defines the variable on which the alarm will affect its parameterization. The options available to choose from will depend on the datasource where the alarm will act;

• **Comparation** – this field defines the alarm criterion set. Applying rules based on mathematical symbols, user can apply direct or range comparison rules to the defined variables;

• **Value** – reference value for the alarm. Depending on the criteria selected in the previous parameter, it may be necessary to define two reference values;

• **Category** – alarms can be set to be from the **Error** or **Warning** type. For more details about alarm categories, see the **ALARMS CATEGORIES** section.



#### Functional explanation of value alarm:



Figure 94 - Behaviour of value type alarms

#### Inactivity

Alarms can be set when there is no activity associated to one or more datasources, showing no dependence on the number of variables it is monitoring. **Tekon IoT Platform** allows the user to set two parameters for this type of alarm:

• Datasources – field to select datasource(s) which we want to focus the alarm.

• **Time** – elapsed time in seconds since the last communication until a new alarm is issued;

• **Category** – alarms can be set to be from the **Erro** or **Warning** type. For more details about alarm categories, see the **ALARMS CATEGORIES** section.



Functional explanation of inactivity alarm:

Figure 95 - Behaviour of inactivity type alarms



There are parameters that are common to all types of alarms – notifications and schedule.

## Notifications

The notifications associated with alarms give you the ability to choose how you want to be notified when alarms are triggered. Notifications can be made by two different communication channels:

• Email

You can set on or more email addresses to receive notifications regarding this alarm.

Email address format must follow the traditional format (<u>abcdef@abc.aaa</u>). To enter more than one email in this field, you must divide the addresses with semicolons ("; ");

Optionally, you can configure the message sent in the alarm email, to provide more details about the occurrence. The message has a maximum limit of 500 characters.

• SMS

You can set one or more mobile numbers to receive an SMS with notification regarding this alarm.

The format of mobile numbers must contain the country calling code of the contact (Portugal - +351987654321). To enter more than one contact in this field, you must divide the numbers with semicolons (";");

Optionally, you can configure the message sent in the alarm SMS, to provide more details about the occurrence. The message has a maximum limit of 100 characters.



Notifications	
Send notification by email	
WARNING - Server configuration: The mail server is not configured. Configure it in the following menu: Settings >	Configuration > Email
Notification Emails*	
Separate email addresses with the character ";"	
ex: a@a.aa; b@b.bb;	
Message (optional)	
	4
	500 chars
Send notification by SMS	500 char
Send notification by SMS WARNING - Server configuration: The SMS server is not configured. Configure it in the following menu: Settings >	
WARNING - Server configuration: The SMS server is not configured. Configure it in the following menu: Settings >	
WARNING - Server configuration: The SMS server is not configured. Configure it in the following menu: Settings > Notification numbers*	
WARNING - Server configuration: The SMS server is not configured. Configure it in the following menu: Settings > Notification numbers* Separate cell phone numbers with the character ";", You must include the country code (ex: +351)	
WARNING - Server configuration: The SMS server is not configured. Configure it in the following menu: Settings > Notification numbers* Separate cell phone numbers with the character ";". You must include the country code (ex: +351) +1411111111; +351981234567;	
WARNING - Server configuration: The SMS server is not configured. Configure it in the following menu: Settings > Notification numbers* separate cell phone numbers with the character ";". You must include the country code (ex: +351) +1411111111; +351981234567; Mcssage	
WARNING - Server configuration: The SMS server is not configured. Configure it in the following menu: Settings > Notification numbers* separate cell phone numbers with the character ";". You must include the country code (ex: +351) +1411111111; +351981234567; Mcssage	
WARNING - Server configuration: The SMS server is not configured. Configure it in the following menu: Settings > Notification numbers* separate cell phone numbers with the character ";". You must include the country code (ex: +351) +1411111111; +351981234567; Mcssage	
WARNING - Server configuration: The SMS server is not configured. Configure it in the following menu: Settings > Notification numbers* separate cell phone numbers with the character ";". You must include the country code (ex: +351) +1411111111; +351981234567; Mcssage	
WARNING - Server configuration: The SMS server is not configured. Configure it in the following menu: Settings > Notification numbers* separate cell phone numbers with the character ";". You must include the country code (ex: +351) +1411111111; +351981234567; Mcssage	

Figure 96 - Fields to enter the notifications contacts

NOTE: for these types of notifications to work, you must enable platform notifications and enter your email and sms services data. See the "*Notifications services*" topic to find more information to support the configuration.

EXTRA NOTE: the notification content is pre-set by the platform, with the variable, datasource and alarm reason unambiguously identified in the message.

## Schedule

The schedule associated with alarms establishes the time frame in which their monitoring functions for a certain variable are active. Scheduling options center their parameterization on two topics with temporal relationship:

- Days: define days of the week when the alarm is active;
- Time: definition of daily time window in which the alarm is active;



chedules m*		
ays Selected: NO		
2HeDM62*		
The dame is always on ( 9238221-2153-59)	s)	
(most)		( lave

Figure 97 - Alarm schedule options

In the "Days" section, you can define the day(s) of the week when the alarm will be active. If you want the alarm to be active on all days, select the "All" option.

#### NOTE: By default, alarms are set to be operational every day, 24 hours a day.

In addition to the days the alarm can be active, you can define a different time window for each configured alarm.

Schedules		
leys"		
<b>223</b> 0000000		
says selected: all)		
chotor.*		
The altern is alvests on ( (00000 (0 - 20199:59 )	-)	
The same is investigation (180,000.00), 20,000 (19)		
All daigt have the zame hierant		
Course whereas he want due		

Figure 98 - Days of the week when alarms are active

#### Available time intervals:

"The alarm is always active (00:00:00 – 23:59:59)" – the alarm is active all day;

"All days have the same interval" – is defined a time interval applied to days previously selected;

**"Choose interval for each day"** – for each day previously selected, you can define a different time interval in which the alarm will be active;

Schedules			
Duys*			
C	000000		
Days Selected All			
Schenhale*			
Charace interval fo	ar each dag	.)	
Sunday"			
0 01:00:01	23.09.09		
Maxalloy+			
00:00:00 9	23:59:54 @		
Facility			
00:00:00 0	23-59159 03		
Wralecoday"			
00:00:00 0	23:59:59 ©		
Fhursday"			
00:00:00:00	20:39399		
Friday*			
00:00:00 D	23 59159 @		
saturday*			
00:00:00 0	an and an		
			<b>C</b>

Figure 99 – Configuration of hours and days to the alarms



## Alarms categories

The alarms configured on the **Tekon IoT Platform** can be distinguished into two types that allow the user to filter the relevance of the information that has triggered the alarm. The alarm category is divided into **Warning** (<sup>•</sup> warring</sup>) and **Error** (<sup>•</sup> types. These two categories allow the user to assign a degree of priority to each alarm that is set.

### **History**

The alarm history feature makes possible to export related to alarms generated on the platform. Users can set the parameters associated with alarms to filter the required information:

- Datasources: which datasources you want to get the alarm;
- Start/End date of occurrence: date and time interval of occurrences;
- **Type**: type of alarms. The user can choose both values or only "*Value*" or "*Inactivity*" type;
- **State**: the state of the alarms from which data will be collected. The user can choose to include all alarm status or only active (*Active*) or archived (*Archived*) alarms;
- **Category**: the user sets the category of alarms that will be included in the history. He can select both available categories, *Warning* or *Error*, or choose an individual selection.

The user can export the alarm history in three different formats: .CSV, .PDF or .XLSX.

	anas 🚺 Alahan - 🖨 Bala + 🗘 Betaka -	<ul> <li>ans •</li> </ul>
History		
Filters Datascurces		
start date of occurrence	Ead date of occurrence	
(moscore molecula	) (mainipererramatia 🛛 🗎	
Types		
41	•)	
State		
(A)	•	
Category		
	•)	
		B-Equat -
		S GV
		5 ror
		B 234
	in that interaction committee an	

Figure 100 - Alarm history page



## **Alarms actions**

In the elements that assist the alarm list, there are actions that can be applied in a unique way to each of the listed elements.



Figure 101 - Active alarms actions



Figure 102 - Deactive alarm actions

Let's describe the function of each action icons:

0	View information about alarm configurations
9	Edit alarm configuration
æ	Clone and create new datasource based on the original parameters
C	Deactivate the alarm (option available when alarm configuration is activated)
~	Activate the alarm (option available when alarm configuration is deactivated)
Ō	Delete alarm

# NOTE: when you deactivate an alarm, you will not receive any notification and the alarm will not be displayed on any alarm widget.

In the list of configured alarms, you can check the configuration and status of each alarm. Click on the icon before the datasource name and the information will be displayed. In alarms configured based on the inactivity of the datasource, the window will look like this.



NORDITME		(namberly	60 wecowd(x)		Warrang	S	Ð	1	. 0	. 0
States lides	there always or him-			Mont I Ticant Room	Without not first in	*				

Figure 103 - Inactivity alarm details

In alarms configured based on the value of a variable, the window will look like this.

V THE		Valued	Internal Tampinature - 22		E)(ar	S int	œ	1	• •
<b>Wariable</b>	Informed Temperature			Schedules	Alere: alwaps active				
Number of occurrences	4			Notifications	Without not fication	5			

Figure 104 - Value alarm details

## Configure a "Value" type alarm

Follow the steps below to configure an alarm that focuses on the recorded values.

	илама - 😫 плах - 🏮 аттаная -	🔵 atres -
Create alarm configuration		
Alarm condition		
Name type"		
Solectar aniv tigit	+	
Belaverers*		
Select a addressing		
Notifications		
C send notification by email		
Send notification by SHS		
Schedules		
Days*		
C 0000000		
(Dopo Selectral: 48)		
Sta book also		
The share is always in ( in more - 20 percet)		
<b></b>		-
- Control - Cont		<u> </u>
() International	Heariest Medicine (1.0.1	SE 1927 - Emeration Advertise, A.S.A.

Figure 105 - Alarm configuration page

- 1. In the "Alarm type" field, select the option "Value".
- 2. In the "Datasources" field, select the datasource(s) where the alarm will act.
- 3. From the list of displayed variables, select one or more matched variables where the alarm will act.

NOTE: Each variable is represented through a type of data (numeric – Uint, Int, Float; string – String; boolean – Bool). In each configured alarm where more than one variable will be used, you can only select variables of the same type.

#### **USER MANUAL TEKON IOT PLATFORM**



	Search
Hygrotemp 1 - 1min (0)	
Model [UInt] Sensor Model [UInt] RSSI [Int] Communication	tion Period [UInt] 🗌 Elapsed Time [UInt]
Power Supply Voltage [Float]     Firmware Version [String]     Hardware	re Version [String] 🗌 Internal Temperature [Float]
External Temperature [Float] Humidity [Int] Cenas [Int]	
Hygrotemp 2 - 10min (0)	
Model [UInt] Sensor Model [UInt] RSSI [Int] Communication	tion Period [UInt] 🗌 Elapsed Time [UInt]
Power Supply Voltage [Float]     Firmware Version [String]     Hardwa	re Version [String] 🗌 Internal Temperature [Float]
External Temperature [Float] Humidity [Int]	

Figure 106 - Variables of selected datasources

All variables visible from the same group	Search
Hygrotemp 2 - 10min (2)	
Model [UInt] Sensor Model [UInt] RSSI [Int] Comm	unication Period [UInt]
Power Supply Voltage [Float]     Firmware Version [String]     Ha	ardware Version [String] 🗌 Internal Temperature [Float]
Z External Temperature [Float] Z Humidity [Int]	
Hygrotemp 3 - 1hour (2)	
Model [UInt] Sensor Model [UInt] RSSI [Int] Comm	unication Period [UInt]
Power Supply Voltage [Float]     Firmware Version [String]     Ha	ardware Version [String] 🗌 Internal Temperature [Float]
🗹 External Temperature [Float] 🛛 G Humidity [Int]	

Figure 107 – Selected and blocked variables

- 4. To select multiple variables, you can do it in several ways:
  - a. Manual selection of each variable;
  - b. In the search bar, search the variable name e select "All variables visible from the same group" option.
- 5. Select a comparation method between the value configured on the alarm and the values registered by the datasource.
- 6. Insert a value of reference.
- 7. Configure the number of **consecutive** occurrences until the alarm be emitted.
- 8. Select the alarm category.
- 9. If you want notifications to be sent when the alarm is emitted, select the desired notification option:
  - c. "Send notification by email" insert email addresses to receive notifications;



- d. "Send notification by SMS" insert mobile numbers that will receive notifications by sms texts;
- 10. Select the days when the alarm will be active.
- 11. Define the time interval in which the alarm will be active, within the previously defined days.
- 12. Click on "Save" button to save the alarm configuration.

## Configure an "Inactivity" type alarm

Follow the steps below to configure an alarm that focuses on the datasources communication status.

Тексоп 🙆 влановлят 📾 гитларияста 🌲	ALMING - 😫 EANA - 🗘 IFTINGS -	ant -
Create alarm configuration		
Alarm condition		
Name type*		
Solicitan analy base	•)	
Deleverers*		
Select 5 datamente		
Notifications		
Earl southaben by small		
Send notification by SHS		
Schedules		
Days*		
<b>CD</b> 000000		
(Dops Scientifi 44)		
w.bedi.de*		
(The share a showy or ( interior - 21 second)		
Gent		500 C
() Hundestows	Televisit Packments.bit	© 1001 - Beskins Assuração, S.A.

Figure 108 - Alarm configuration page

- 1. In the "Alarm type" field, select the option "Inactivity".
- 2. In the "Datasources" field, select the datasource(s) where the alarm will act.
- 3. Configure the time, in seconds, since last communication until the alarm be emitted.
- 4. Select the alarm category.
- 5. If you want notifications to be sent when the alarm is emitted, select the desired notification option:
  - a. "Send notification by email" insert email addresses to receive notifications;
  - b. "Send notification by SMS" insert mobile numbers that will receive notifications by sms texts;
- 6. Select the days when the alarm will be active.
- 7. Define the time interval in which the alarm will be active, within the previously defined days.
- 8. Click on "Save" button to save the alarm configuration.


# **DATA EXPORT**

Data export from **Tekon IoT Platform** allows the user to export data integrated in the platform.

Export  * Sections on making  interest		213 🔺 ALAINO - 🔳 DAVA -	🖨 атнов -	🦲 2000 ·
Inderstanding In	Export			
Wettdownei           File ges*           Skon Reg           Skon Reg           Wettdownei           Bergenerry Keinesk				
Hit type * Sake The Law  And Ada * Ind				
isolation     isolation       isolation     isolation				
		End data 1		
# Incl. ##Think.gtTexpEdin tv.				Capet
# Inc. ##Think.gtTexpdo 1.4.				
is too: eternine.getrosofin ta.				
i a tota attentiada provido n.k.				
i e tota - attentisad provide n.k.				
is too-sectionautrosofic s.s.				
is too-sectional provide s.				
in the antitude provide in a				
# 200- MISSIN ATTINGS 5.4				
a 100-100504 Attestich 5.4				
<ul> <li>Incl. retrained attendor to</li> </ul>				
			a tos - fietuas autoracio, 4.a.	

Figure 109 - Data export page

## Data export formats

The data collected through the platform can be exported to a .PDF, .CSV and .XLSX file for further analysis.

The user can define:

- Datasources to gather data;
- File format to export;
- Time range of desired records;



# **DATA ANALYSIS**

Data analysis allows the user, even within the Tekon IoT Platform, to show the behavior of the data already received, with the use of data aggregation filters, typical of this type of analysis. With the data export functionality, the user only has the possibility to download a file with the data received from one or more datasources and chosen time interval. In data analysis, it is possible to aggregate and correlate graphically, different variables from different datasources and download the data in a set of formats that adapt to what the user is looking for.

	usoona	а 🛊 клам - 🔳 вак - 🛊 и	rringal +	💮 atra -
Analysis				
* The model items are managing				
Variables selection				
Datassarce				
Sekut a dotanazor			•	
Variables				
Select a bitessare			•	
Variables to analyze *				
Namar Vorlahb	le .	Datawaata	e Action	
No data avaladar in tatlar				
Analysis period				
Start date *		End data *		
(msso/werkomase		(HHRLIGHTET INNESSIA	m	
Aggregation				
Aggregation type *		Internal *		
Average	•	( thear		
				Van
1				

Figure 110 - Data analysis page

## **Variables selection**

The selection of variables allows the user to indicate which variables he wants to include in the analysis. It is possible to select one or more variables from different datasources. There is no restriction on the selection of variables.

CHUN 🚳 BASEDAND 🛋 BASESANCES 🌲 ALANNE + 📑 BALK - 💠 SETTINES -	
nalysis	
The model feres an resolutory	
fariables selection	
Massar	
Select a diagonate *	
radiables	
beent a catalourue *	

Figure 111 - Selection of variables

Choose a variable from a datasource:

- Click the checkbox below the "Datasource" parameter.
- Choose the datasource that has the variable you want to choose.
- Click the checkbox below the "Variables" parameter.



• Choose the variable you want to analyze.

Choose several variables from a datasource:

- Click the checkbox below the "Datasource" parameter.
- Choose the datasource that has the variable you want to choose.
- Click the checkbox below the "Variables" parameter.
- Choose the variables you want to analyze.

NOTE: each time the user selects a variable, it is removed from the list of variables available for selection and is placed in the list of variables to analyze.

🖳 🐨 DASHIDARD 🖷 DATADORITS 🌲 ALABARS -	- 🧧 сала - 🗘 аттика -	🦲 👘
unalysis		
* The maked trees are mandatory		
Variables selection		
Detasource		
THP-GABDTU/T-Tank Level		
Variables		
rossie - Poe - I Lavel -		
Rumste Output ithing	- b	
Searts Volve		
Torrper WLve	rfable flota	anarco Activity
Remote Output	resito TWP-	ADDOLUT Task Lavel
Mardinare version	TWO	ANEXTLIF Tarie Laws
RSS		
Power Supply votage	vol TWM-	ADDOLOT TANK LEVOL

Figure 112 - Variables list

## Variables to analyze

In the process of selecting variables for analysis, the user's choices are listed in order of selection. Each record in the list shows the following parameters:

- Name: name that the variable took on this list (original name + datasource);
- Variable: the variable that represents;
- Datasource: the datasource of which it is a part;
- Actions: possible actions on this list;

/ariables to analyze *			
Name	Variable	Dataseurce	Actio m
Level - TWP-KREDELOT Tark Level	Level	TWP-6444011UT Tark Lavel	
Flow - TWP-4834D1LUT Tarik Level	Rav	TWP-MARCHUT Task Lovel	
Pressure - TWP-4404013UIT Tank Level	Pressure .	TWP-4414010JT Taels Level	
Temperature - TWP-403001017 Tests Level	Tempeorlaire	TAP-MADUUT Test Level	

Figure 113 - List of variables for analysis

In this section, user can delete the variable from the analysis he wants to perform or modify the original name of the variable.



#### **Delete variable**

• Click the trash icon ( 💻 ) for the variable you want to delete.

ariables to analyze *			
lame	Variable	Dataseurce	Actions
Level - TWP-MEREE20T Tark Level	Level	TWP-464-01LUT Tark Lavel	
Flow - TNP-4834D11.0T Tarix Lavel	Pkav	TWP-44(4010)T Tech lovel	
Pressure - TWP-Healthout Tank Level	Pressure .	TWIF-4404010/T Tree Lovel	
Temperature - TWP-40101017 Task Level	Tempeorlaire	TWP-MARTINET Teck Level	

Figure 114 - Action to delete variables

#### Change the variable name

- Click in the text box of the variable you want to modify and make the change.
- The change will be applied immediately.

ariables to analyze *			
lanc	Variable	Datasource	Actio m
Level - TWP-KREDELOT Tark Level	Level	TWP-666-01LUT Tark Lavel	
Flow - TWP-4NHOILUT Tark Level	) nav	TWP-MCADIUIT Task lavel	
Pressure - TWP-4404010UT Tank Level	Pressure	TWIP-4434011UT Tire's Level	
Temperature - TWP-4MMD1LUT Task Lawel	Tempeoilue	TAR-MARTINT Test Level	

Figure 115 - Change variables name

NOTE: the name change is valid only in the area of data analysis. It does not extend to other areas of the platform.

## **Analysis period**

In this section, user defines the beginning and the end of the time interval of the records that will be used in the analysis.

Analysis			
* The market items are marketory			
Variables selection			
Dafassero			
TWP-0495E10T Tark Level	*		
Variables			
Fou Presure Temperature Lavel			
Variables to analyze *			
Kame	Vavitshie	Datastance	Acta
RDN -	flow	TWP-4404021UT Tank Lavol	
Pressure - TaiP-dolatility/T Tank Level	Pessare	TWP-HOLDS UT Tark Level	
Temperature - Twill-WolfDDUT Tark (cml	Temperature	TWP-MONDITUM Track Level	
Level - TRIP-440400U/T Terri Level	Level	TWP-44040010T Tank Lovel	
Analysis period			

Figure 116 - Analysis period for configuration



NOTE: the longer the chosen interval, the more data will be used. The data load time may leave the page unavailable for some time.

# Aggregation

Data aggregation is the process in which raw data is gathered and arranged in a summary format for statistical analysis. Each aggregation method must have a time interval in which the aggregation value is established.

## **Aggregation methods**

- Without aggregation: no data aggregation method is applied in the analysis;
- Average: average of the aggregated values;
- Maximum: maximum value of aggregated data;
- Minimum: minimum value of aggregated data;
- Median: median value of the sample.

NOTE: in aggregation, the option "Without aggregation" downloads a large number of data from the server. This may take some time and make the page unavailable.

#### Interval

The "Interval" field allows user to define the time block in which aggregation is applied. The timeframe is counted from the start date of the data analysis.

Aggregation		
Aggregation type *	Interval *	
Average	15 minutes	•
	15 minutes 30 minutes 1 hour 12 hours 1 day 1 week 1 month 1 year	

Figure 117 - Aggregation parameters - type and interval

The interval values cannot be set by the user. There are predefined values that can be applied. In this field, user can choose one of these values:

- 15 minutes;
- 30 minutes;
- **1** hour;
- 12 hours;
- 1 day;



- 1 week;
- 1 month;
- 1 year;

After setting all the previous fields, click on the button *View* to generate the data analysis.

NOTE: in aggregation, data from type *string* or *bool* will be left blank.

## Data analysis

In this section of the data analysis page, the results of the combination of all parameters defined from the beginning of the page are displayed. The information generated for analysis is displayed in two different formats - graph and table.



Figure 118 - Data analysis

# Graphic

In this option, the projected data are displayed in a temporal graph, identical to the previous figure, with options that can be edited by the user, in order to specify their analysis. User can edit the following properties - Scale and Granularity.



# **Scales configuration**





A scale is assigned to each variable. The scale can be assigned in two ways:

• Automatic: the scale is defined based on the minimum or maximum value of the variable data in the defined time interval. This option appears selected by default.

• **Manual**: the scale is defined, through values entered manually, by the user. The user enters the minimum and maximum scale values

ane	scale		Ph	Max	
erel	Automatic	•)			
Dear	Advett	•			
Pressure	Automatic	•)			
Temperature	Hereal	-	14	15	

Figure 120 - Scales configuration

When scales are defined manually, the values are saved in the list of options for the scales. Thus, the scale values of one variable can be used in another, without the user having to repeat the entry of these values.

Scales configuration			
land	Scale	Min	Plax
eed	ALEVAL	•	
These	Marchail Marchail Min 5 - Pilmi TSi		
resaire	adunte		
femperature	Menual	. 4	15

Figure 121 - Manual configuration of scales



# **Thresholds bands configuration**



Figure 122 - Timeline chart with threshold bands

For each variable selected in the analysis, it is possible to define a graphic band that will be displayed in the generated graphic, as shown in the image above. The objective is to mark a range of values of a given variable and verify its behavior.

Thresholds bands configuration				
Variable	Min	Maxa	Collor	Actions
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		[200000]	0
(+ AAT Disa				

Figure 123 - Thresholds bands configuration

- 1. Click on "Add band" to add a new threshold band to the chart.
- 2. Click on "Variable" list and select the variable to associate the band.
- 3. Insert the minimum value.
- 4. Insert the maximum value.
- 5. Select the band colour.
- 6. Repeat the previous steps to configure a new band.
- 7. Click on "Update" to reload the configurations and view threshold bands.

## Granularity

This parameter allows to define the level of detail of the data displayed in the graph. In the context of data analysis, this property is known as granularity. The higher the level of granularity, more detailed the information in the graph.



Figure 124 - Graph with granularity level

By default, the level of detail of the sample applied is "High". The user can change the level of detail at any time.

- Click on the level of detail you want to apply.
- Click the button to save the change and update the graph.

## "Update" button

All changes that are made to the parameters, after the first configuration, are only implemented after the user clicks on the button , to update the data in the analysis table and graph.



Figure 125 - Update button

## Chart info

The graph generated for data analysis has a common visual model. In the following image, the characteristics of the graph are highlighted.





Figure 126 - Graph elements

- 1 Variable scale
- 2 Graph zoom bar

The user can increase and decrease the period. In a shorter period, it is possible to click on the bar and drag to the right and left to move the time back and forth, always maintaining the period.

- **3** Data export button
- 4 Variables caption

You can hide the variables from the graph by clicking on the name of the variable in the legend.

5 – Graph

Hovering the mouse will show more detailed information than the data being consulted: values and date. It is possible to select a zone of the graph (click and drag) to zoom in on that area.

NOTE: on devices with touchscreen navigation, the interaction with the graph is blocked. To activate the interaction with the graph, click on the graph. After three seconds of inactivity, the graph will be blocked again.

#### Data export

The data used to generate the graph in the data analysis of the Tekon IoT Platform, can be exported to a file or printed directly in physical format.

Type of export	Formats
Print	Window to configure the printing of the graph
Data	PDF, HTML, XLSX, CSV, JSON
Image	PDF, SVG, JPG, PNG

Figure 127 - Formats for data export



NOTE: invalid data for the chart, such as strings and booleans, are left blank on purpose. This prevents this data from appearing in the exported formats.

## **Table**

The "Table" tab allows the user to list all the data found, within the parameters defined at the beginning of the page.

C Oot 🖷 Tak					
liptere					B- Door
late	Level	Films	Pressure	Temperature	
G) (3/3830 7:45:00 RM	1400.00	3.72	102.03	49.25	
sitatiwan kowananiw	3.400.00	1.12	31.28	38.79	
5/13/2020 4045 00 044	2009.63	8.72	29.33	19.45	
a/1a/20100 5530:00 PM	827.36	1.17	99.09	18.07	
912/2820 5×49:00 PM	723.86	9.12	102.27	14.87	
V13(2010) 6140.00 AM	635.37	8.25	104.20	15.87	
5/13/2820 St08:00 AM	796.80	0.21	162,37	18.86	
					« < <b>0</b> >

Figure 128 - Aggregated data in table

## "Update" button

All changes that are made to the parameters, after the first configuration, are implemented only after the user clicks on the button , to update the data in the table and graph of the data analysis.

#### Data export

The data that is listed in this tab can be exported to a file, which organizes the data in a list with the same format as the one visible on the platform. The possible formats for export are as follows:

- CSV;
- PDF;
- XLSX.



# **PERIODIC REPORTS**

Tekon IoT Platform's periodic reporting functionality allows users to creat a document with a time frame that aggregates relevant data and information, promoting the temporal analysis of the process.

The configuration of the periodic report is divided into two parts - general information and data sections. In the general information, the user defines the most general aspects:

- **Name** name assigned to the periodic report. When exporting, the .pdf file will also assume this name;
- Email address of report recipients emails from the recipients who will receive the report. Emails must be separated by a semicolon (;);
- Text to send in email email body where the report will be sent. Field limited to 500 characters;
- **Report title** Title that will appear in the report header;
- **Report footer** Information that will be at the bottom of the document. This field is not required;
- Orientation of report pages Selection of the orientation of the report pages;
- Reporting period time interval in which the report is generated;
- **Time from which the report can be generated** time from which the system will gather information and generate the report. The defined time must take into account the time zone defined in the following field;
- Timezone time zone for the creation of reports;
- Language language of the periodic reports;
- **Logo** logo of the company or organization to include in the report. Only files with JPEG or PNG formats can be used. This field is not required.;



ПЕНДО 🗈 канала 🔺 клика 🖡 складнова 🔺 клика - 😑 вила -	admin •
Create periodic report	
Come > C apertura	
Define below the general projecties of the periodic report * The rando lines a considery	
Non-	
examble and services of the senses "	
Fast to word it senal?	
300 days	
Report Hilts*	
Robert Rober	
Outstation of report append	
Repeting period*	
This from which the popert can be generated.	
2205.645	
Income <sup>®</sup>	
(respectador -	
Landstor	
sout -	
Lago	
Machani Vol: 110 PG Approximation of Immate any and any events 0	
Quest, anneses annes(s), s.s.	

Figure 129 - General settings of periodic reports

The report sections are created to group data and the different types of analysis that can be configured. Each section has characteristic fields:

- **Title** section title;
- **Description** text describing the type of information that will be in that section or other relevant notes. This field is not required;
- Datasources selection of the datasources that will provide the data for this section;
- Variables List of variables available in the datasources chosen in the previous field;
- Select the information that want to include in the report type of information organization that we want to use in this section (values in graph or table and alarms related to the variables);



	SHDOME) 🚔 UNDESSURCES	🌲 ALARMS -	A SETTINGS -		
reate periodic report					
Deniel > (2) Rap	est sectors				
Define below the sections of the p	hegn sibohe				
The marked forms are mandatory					
/ (Untitled)					
Title*					
Description					
ta≓ • BJU					
Datascarces"					
select a checostane					
		10			
		wist			
/anlophies <sup>to</sup>	Variable	webst Deficesente	Addoss		
faribble5" still casefine Name	Variable	and the second se	Actions		
faritables <sup>to</sup> Auf saudow Norte No data waitable in table Relati the information that want		and the second se	Actions		
Andobles <sup>®</sup> All bandow North: No data available in table Red the information that wont from me of the precise actions	to include in the report*	Defession:			
Variables <sup>1)</sup> still tandise		Defectory:	Actives		
Variables® Autoreautore Name No data sociation in taking Sector the Soleman fields water These are of the position relater.	to include in the report*	Defectory:	3		
Variables® Autoreautore Name No data sociation in taking Sector the Soleman fields water These are of the position relater.	to include in the report*	Defectory:	3		
Antobies" Ant Loudow Kenn: As data solaris in tatin elekt the Ulernotition flut work forwards it the internotition.	to include in the report*	Defectory:	3		e maiou
harbolds" fait counting Norm: de data souther in statist decit. the biblermodition that ensure bible count of the counting southers that are also the counting of the southers of hard	to include in the report*	Defectory:	3		e macu

Figure 130 - Section configuration

## **Selection of datasources**

Choose the datasources that will provide the data to produce this section of the report.

Datasources*		
Select a datasource		

Figure 131 - Datasources selection

- Click in the box in the Datasources field;
- Select the datasource (s) from which the variables will be extracted to include in that section;

NOTE: the option to select all datasources from the list, will only be valid for the representation of alarms. The options for viewing the information in a graph or table will not be available.

elect the information that want to include hoose one of the previous options		
111	Ħ	5
Chart	Table	Alarms

Figure 132 - Selection of information to display in this section



# **Selection of variables**

After determining the desired datasources, define which variables will be required for data processing. After defining the variables, they will be visible in a table.

Add variables		Select	
lame	Variable	Datasource	Actions

Figure 133 - Variables selection

- Click on the box "Add variables" to see the list of available variables;
- Click on checkbox of the variable that you want to select;

Adicionar variáveis		Selecione	
Nome	Variável	External Temperature	
Sem dados disponíveis	na tabela	Digital Input	
Selecione a informaç	ão que pretende incluir no relatório*	Model	1
Escolha uma das opções an	eriores	Firmware Version	
Ŀ	<u>u</u> 🖽	Communication Period	
Gra	ifico Tabela	Sensor Model	
		Counter	
+ Adicionar secção		Hardware Version	
		RSSI	
Cancelar		Elapsed Time	
		Power Supply Voltage	
		Internal Temperature	AR A

Figure 134 - List of available variables

If you want all the variables available, click on the checkbox of the option "Select all".

Add variables		Select	
Name	Variable	Datasource	Action
Level	Level	TWP-4AI4DI1UT Tank Level	
Flow	Flow	TWP-4AI4DI1UT Tank Level	创
Temperature	Temperature	TWP-4AI4DI1UT Tank Level	创
Security Valve	Security Valve	TWP-4AI4DI1UT Tank Level	Û
Pressure	Pressure	TWP-4AI4DI1UT Tank Level	圓

Figure 135 - List of chosen variables



It is possible to customize the name that the variable will have in the report, changing the "Name" field.

## **Selection of report information**

In each section you can define the variables information that will be included. Users can choose from:

- include a chart with data for selected variables
- list registers in a table
- list all alarms that are associated with these variables that were triggered.

1.6.0	-	5
<u></u>	<b>H</b>	9
Chart	Table	Alarms

Figure 136 - Report information

If you choose the information in **Chart** or **Table**, you must define the aggregation parameters for this data analysis.

1	il.	<b>⊞</b>		5	
Ch	art	Tabl	e	Alarms	
Thresholds band in ch Based on the variables select	<b>art</b> red in the previous step, define th	e limit bands you want to	show on the chart.		
Variable	Min	Max	Color	Actions	
+ Add band Report Period* 1 day					
Aggregation type*					
Average					
Average Aggregation interval*					

Figure 137 - Parameters of data aggregation



## Thresholds bands

In the generated charts with the chosen variables, you can add data threshold bands.

- 1. Click on "Add band" to add a threshold band to the chart.
- 2. Click on the "Variable" list and select the variable to create the band.
- 3. Enter the minimum limit value for the variable.
- 4. Enter the maximum limit value for the variable.
- 5. Select the colour you want to assign to the band.
- 6. Repeat the previous steps for each band you want to add.

## **Aggregation type**

Aggregation type allows you to define how the collected data will be aggregated and displayed. Among the options available, data can be aggregated in four ways:

- Average
- Maximum
- Minimum
- Median

## **Aggregation interval**

Aggregation interval sets the time span under which the data will be aggregated. The data can be aggregated in three ways:

- 30 minutes
- 1 minute
- 1 hour

User can add new sections to the report at any time. To add new sections, click the *Add section* button.

After you have created the sections, you can organize them using the options in the section listing. You can also delete sections of your report at any time.

$\uparrow$	$\checkmark$	۵
$\uparrow$	$\checkmark$	Û

Figure 138 - Sections options



NOTE: if there is an error in the configuration of a section, it will be highlighted in red. One example could be the elimination of datasources from the platform, which would be used in periodic reports.

	💩 astro +
Edit periodic report	
Steven 3 🕢 Kesotsetois	
Declina: before: Une waschein af dies gescheider, export A The matiliar cave are nurdezing	
> Tark Level	÷ ↓ ⊡
> Monitoring	↑ + m
(Aller)	
	e fravour
- 6 X01 - 8403848 - 84039666, 5.8.	

Figure 139 - Section error

## **Periodic reporting actions**

After completing the configuration of the report (s), they are listed and with a set of options available.

			Actio		
0	ø	فل	~	\$ Ø	Ô

Figure 140 - Periodic reports options

We will describe the function of each action icons:

- View report configurations.
- Edit report configurations.
- Clone this report.
- Active report sending (option only available
- when report sending is deactivated)
- U Deactive report sending (option only available
- when report sending is activated)
- Test the submission of periodic



Preview report file.

Delete report.

NOTE: when periodic report is deactivated, report sending is suspended from that moment. User still be able to visualize the report.



## **NOTIFICATIONS SERVICES**

Notifications are important tools that reinforce the significance of real-time data monitoring. **Tekon IoT Platform** currently offers a notification service oriented to two communication channels – email and sms.

## **Activate notifications**

Using and setting the notification services is always an optional step for you and your organization. For a more effective experience and take advantage of all functionalities of **Tekon IoT Platform**, the notification service must be enabled.

On the *Settings* >> *Configuration* >> *Alarms Configuration* menu, click on **Edit** ( ). On the new page you can configure the language in which notifications will be sent and select which type of notification you want to be operational.

	🖂 DATASDUICES	ALMINE -	DATA - DO BUIDA	at an
Edit alarm configurations				
Languago <sup>a</sup>				
sirghð				
Netifications				
Send alarms by small				
Send alerms by 946				
-				-
				-

Figure 141 - Notifications service configuration page

NOTE: if you only enable one of the notification types, or if you do not enable any, email and sms services can be configured but not operational. If you pretend to activate the notifications, you must enable this option.

# **Limit notifications**

Real-time monitoring can generate a high number of notifications. The context of monitoring may dictate the need to limit the number of notifications sent to users, and thus optimize the service, avoiding unnecessary expenses, with the costs of text messages.

By clicking on the validation boxes to activate notifications, options related to limiting the number of notifications will be displayed.

On a first scale, select whether or don't you want to limit the sending of notifications.

Tekon an	DASHISOARD 👝 DATASOURCES	🌲 ALARNIS + 🛛 EMTA + 🚺 BETTINGA	ans -
Edit alarm configuration	ons		
<ul> <li>Fire novicel items are mandeliny Linguage<sup>4</sup></li> </ul>			
Brolen			
Notifications Send starms to crest Notification Brait alarm configu	aratian		
Without limit			
<ul> <li>Send alores by SHS</li> <li>Netification limit alares configure</li> </ul>			
Wildow and			
63			<b>ee</b>
		Contra antisentation	urtoseglu, ex.

Figure 142 - Enabling notifications and limit options

## Nota: por definição, as notificações são configuradas sem nenhum limite.

#### In the field Notification limit alarm notification, select With limit option.

It will be displayed the configuration fields to limit notifications:

- Limitation period;
- Maximum number of notifications by period;

CERCIA 🙆 anteridades 🚔 intrascilieuras 🌲	Alamen + 📑 2015 + 😰 Automas -	
dit alarm configurations		
* The marked items are metalology		
Language*		
trgish		
Notific allows		
Send alarms by errad		
Notification Built alarm configuration		
WWB bed	*)	
Peried		
(mas)	•	
Maximum number of notifications by period		
Send storms by SPIS		
Netification limit alarm configuration		
without limit	*	
8		
Codd .		
	grans. wearans surrenches su.	

Figure 143 - Notification limits fields

In the field **Period**, select a time interval to the notification limit. Periods can be set by:

- Hour(s);
- Day(s);
- Month(s);



CERCUIT 🙆 DASHBOARD 🚔 DATAGOURCES 🌲	ALASMS + 🛢 DATA + 🔯 SETTINGS +	in and
dit alarm configurations		
* The marked liferes are recedency		
language*		
Broten		
leditk aligen		
Send alarms by ernali		
letification limit alarm configuration		
Whited		
eried		
12 (Hotels)	¥)	
avinum number of notifications by period		
4		
Scrid alarms by SHG		
etification limit plans configuration		
WING: IFE	•]	
		-
	di mar- desimentati desina.	

Figure 144 - Example of notifications limit

- Select the **type of period** and configure the **number of periods** intended.
- Define the **maximum number of notifications** by period.
- Click on *Save* to save the configurations.

TEKOn 🔒 insidne 🚔 investige 🖡 alvas + 🛢 dala - 🔯 internation	🌰 2008 -
Configuration (million (million (million))	
Languege Daylo	$\odot$
Nethables	
Send shares by wood - Linck by share cardy and any (by Li Brang)) Send shares by 996 - Without limit	
gran women ananolis or	

Figure 145 - Status and limit of notifications

NOTE: limits apply to each configured alarm. In this way, the user will be able to receive a higher number of notifications within the configured time interval but coming from several alarms.



## **Notifications services configuration**

Notification services must be configured so that the defined recipients can receive them, either by email or sms.

#### Email

	anne
onfiguration (cover the profile Meres Industries Mattrix) Notifications and Merts	0 ~
Password Recovery	III the He relifications and electric errori

Figure 146 - Email services configuration

Go to the *Settings* >> *Configuration* >> *Email* menu.

Within email notifications, data can be entered for sending emails for two situations:

- Notifications and alerts email sending to users with activation of alarms and periodic reports;
- Password recovery users password recovery system;

#### "Notifications and Alerts"

- Cicki at Edit () to insert the server configurations.
- Fill the form fields
  - Server email sending server. Ex: smtp.gmail.com;
  - **Port** email service port;
  - Username email server username for access;
  - **Password** email server password for access;
  - **Email** email sender;
  - Name to display on email name to show in email communications;

As a practical example of configuration, we can use Google's email sending service, using the SMTP protocol. With this service, the configuration can look like the following.



- Server: smtp.gmail.com
- **Port**: 587
- Username: <google account username>
- **Email**: <google account email >
- Name to display on email: <defined by user>
- Click on the *Test configuration* button to validate the submission of emails through this server;
- Click on *Save* to save the configuration.

#### "Password recorevy"

# Note: If you want to use the same server and configurations, used in the "Notifications and Alerts" section, select the option "Use the notifications and alerts email";

To configure a different email server, follow the next steps:

- Click on Edit ( ) to insert the server configurations.
- Fill the form fields
  - Server email sending server. Ex: smtp.gmail.com;
  - **Port** email service port;
  - Username email server username for access
  - Password email server password for access;;
  - Email email sender;
  - Name to display on email name to show in email communications;
- Click on the *Test configuration* button to validate the submission of emails through this server;
- Click on *Save* to save the configuration.

CERCUA 🗿 INVERNE 🛋 UNAXIMILE 🗍 RAME - 🛢 UNA - 📦 RUMBE -	💿 ann -
idit email configurations	
The instruct scene are mandatory	
Nutifications and Alerts	^
Sinur"	Hatt"
Upreare*	Password
tsar"	Name to digita (in unal?
Password Recovery	🗌 Desthereotracies and aero anar 🛛 🔊
Surver"	Port .
Uppermane *	Poswerd
without the second seco	
Frail <sup>®</sup>	Ramo ha di pilay / n. ancalif'
REC LEAVER AND	
	(Lon)
	seux ummedit. 1.1.

Figure 147 - Email service configuration form



#### SMS

Notifications configured via SMS are reliant on the subscription of an external service. The **Tekon IoT Platform** offers some SMS services for configuration. Each service is configured according to the supplier's needs. The services available belong to the providers **EZ4U** or **GatewayApi**.

## EZ4U

The EZ4U SMS service offers two types of settings:

- EZ4UPortugal;
- EZ4UInternacional;

In each of the configurations, it is necessary to fill three fields:

- Account: provided by the EZ4U service;
- Api Key: provided by the EZ4U service;
- Sender name: name of the entity identified as the sender of the sms.

(Maximum	of	11	characters);
----------	----	----	--------------

	HC25 🌲 ALAMAS + 📑 DATA + 🔯 WITHAGE +	💩 aton •
Edit sms configurations		
Service provider"		
(DRFstagei	•)	
Account*		
Api key*		
Sendor same*		
-		-
(CD)		
	42 state investees extension by the second state	

Figure 148 - SMS EZ4U service configuration

**Note**: the EZ4UPortugal service only works exclusively for numbers of communications operators in Portugal. If you subscribe to this service, but configure international numbers to receive notifications, the service will not send an SMS or may send it to a number in Portugal. This may happen because, due to the technical characteristics of the EZ4U service, the country extension is removed.

## Copy EZ4U credentials to the Tekon IoT Platform

- Register as an user on the GatewayAPI platform website;
- Log in with the credentials used for registration;
- In the top menu, click on the user icon and click on *Developer*;

Bern-vindo/a Tekon	Saido c	💶 88 SMS 🛓 🗸 Português 🔻
🚸 EZYU	LISTAS & AGENDAMENTOS ENVIO PONTUAL	ESTATÍSTICAS REGISTO FACTURAÇÃO
API Online - Postman     API Manual-V17		
API Key: ebb1d4b6430081373ce41 Exemplos de Código	0af	
<pre>PHP</pre>	XD_POST)	

Figure 149 - EZ4U user access

• Copy the **Api Key** and paste it into the field with the same name, on the Tekon IoT Platform;

- In the Account field, enter your username;
- Fill in the Sender Name field;
- Click *Save* to save the settings.

#### GatewayApi

Learn more about the service in <a href="https://gatewayapi.com/">https://gatewayapi.com/</a>

It is necessary to create a user account on the **GatewayApi** platform. See the topic **Create API Keys on the GatewayApi platform** steps to get the data you need. The user needs two unique parameters used in service configuration within **Tekon IoT Platform**:



- API Key: code provided by the service provider;
- API Secret: code provided by the service provider;
- Sender name: name of entity identified as sender of sms (maximum 11 characters);

This data is required to enable the service for **Tekon IoT Platform** notifications.

Go to *Settings* >> *Configuration* >> *SMS*, fill in the fields with the credentials provided by the sms service provider and set a name to the sms sender.

текоп	🚯 DASHDARD 🧥 GARAGARCES 🌲 Alamas + 🛢 Data + 🔯 Bettings -	🕘 atm +
Edit sms confi	gurations	
Service provider*		
(Galenzijet M	•)	
Apikey <sup>4</sup>		
Api Secret*		
Scader same*		
Contract and		
0		
	an anna - macanan ann ann a' an a	

Figure 150 – SMS GatewayAPI service configuration

# **Create API Keys on the GatewayAPI platform**

- Register as a user on the GatewayAPI platform website;
- Login with the credentials used for registration;
- On the side menu of your user page, click on API >> API Keys;



Figure 151 - GatewayApi site menu



You will be redirected to the API Keys creation page.

• Click on the ADD API KEY button.

gebenaiyogi								
ACCOUNT FROM APR 12.		-						
		API Keys						
NAME OF COLONE	4	400 APL 807						Dearth.
	-0	Encode Constitution						
	15	40340 *	LANS.	1				
	۵		LARE .					
	< a	0			P DET KEY / PD KEN	1 1	×	
		-	1284		A DETERMINED	1 1	*	
	• •							
	1.0	000001102320	(enac)					
	· •							
API .	~ <i>4</i> )							
литкаус								
	• .E							
	4							

Figure 152 - GatewayApi platform API Keys page

• Set the API Key account ID. Each user can have multiple accounts for use on other platforms. Click **ADD** to save.

Add API Key			×
Label			
	Please enter a label. The la	bel is optional but highly recomm	ended.
		CANCEL	ADD

Figure 153 - API Key name label

• A window with the API Key information will show up.

OAuth		
OAuth		
Key	OCA0gvg0Xg1O0LUp4uLGENzL	
		ì
Secret	mhYu5d*BkF-x1HyEA*yfpZTNnoKHXr(5Q6We-f7)	
		Å
Token	NIL4NF4NTtC1KeLtxhDcywBEwWuKzYF3kEK6N-	
	ypV3XVSL1jpMRCIZHI-S_Dkvog	
	Treat this token like a password. Keep it secret, keep it safe.	4

Figure 154 - API Key information on GatewayApi



To associate the service with **Tekon IoT Platform**, perform the following steps:

- Copy the key from the *Key* field and paste it into the *API Key* field of the platform sms service configuration page;
- Copy the *Secret* field key and paste it into the *Secret API* field of the platform sms service configuration page;

## SMS credit

Users can check the balance of SMS notification services without leaving the Tekon IoT Platform.

#### Check account balance

- 1. In the "SMS" tab the configurations of SMS notification service it will be displayed as well as the account balance.
- 2. If you subscribe GatewayAPI service the account balace it will be displayed in numeric value. If the subscribed service is the EZ4U the number of SMS available it will be displayed.
- 3. Click on "Update" to reload the information about your SMS notification service.

тенитальные 🝙 эменярала 🛋 виглеранора 🔺 лимие - 🛢 в	UX - 😰 ELITING: -	🔿 1893 -
Configuration (sound Paul 94) Avers Carlywolas (1917)		
Service provider Talaxa,x51		0
Api key ocompositi nanomini in		
Sen fler norre		
Creen SARYBUE UDDAN		
Credit		
0.047 EUR Update		
1 Town Fechanics	Telian InT Platform VI1.0.0	6 2011 - Secontar Automotion 3A

Figure 155 - Credit of SMS notification service



## **GENERAL SETTINGS**

Customizable general information about the Tekon IoT Platform instance and your company.

#### Language

Tekon IoT Platform is available on four different languages. Users can change the language of the interface without lose any data.

Тексопа 📾 оказона 📾 оказона 🌲 кламе -	Change language ×	🕴 - 🔘 ano -
Configuration of the two sets always charactering units with the sets always charactering units with the sets always alwa	Sefert Berlanguage in be cool in the application (Sefer (Vento 1922))	0
Forder Holds		

Figure 156 - Languages available

Click on "Language" tab and select an option – English, Português, Français or Español.

## **Datasource limit**

Tekon IoT Platform instances have a datasource limit that sets a maximum number of devices supported for uploading data. This value is negotiated at the time of subscription.

	D 💼 UAINBOIRCUS 🌲 ALMING + 😄 DANA -	C ILTING -	🕴 - 🕒 alas -
Configuration Cool Deal	945 Alareo Configuestari WETT		
General License equivation dote			۲
Detucearus ânit Witer Int			
Upload limit by datassures St Deceth			
Tinspens Encyclandar			
top	Toylaw		
Teron	<b>山</b>		
Footer			
Company same taken Bestonis			
Company link Happs//www.ickandrollowics.com III Show fedora in Factor			
CL Tata Assesse		Taken of Platform vici 1.0	d 2011. Brodinar Antoningdo, S.A

Figure 157 - Limit number of datasources



## **Upload limit by datasource**

In each instance of Tekon IoT Platform, there is a minimum communication limit of data from datasources that are displayed on the platform. With this parameter, the minimum data logging period that is supported and logged by the instance is indicated.

By default, the set value is **5 minutes (300 seconds)**. If you want to change the value of this field, please contact Tekon Electronics's technical support or sales team.

	68 🌲 ALAINE - 🚊 BAIA - 🚺 BLIMAR -	🕈 - 🕒 adas -
Configuration Court and Mrs. Almostories	otun NUTT)	
General Licence explosion dete   Veteratives lieft Veterative		Ì
	Ċ	
Looker Caspany sean Intel® Solationes Caspany and Manufame Solationescans Manufame Solationescans		
C Table Remains	Taken (21 Filtre en u	di SCH di Schille di Schill di Schille di Sc

Figure 158 - Upload limit of Tekon IoT Platform

# **Customized image and information**

The user with access permissions to configurations can customize the image and information of his company/business on Tekon IoT Platform. It is possible to configure your company logo and page identification favicon, as well as add company information in the platform footer. Defined images are also used in data export files.

	unno 🛋 uaiaddircla 🌲 alaing - 🛢 daia -	C BUINCE -	🕴 - 🔳 alan -
Configuration Const	Snal 345 Alareo Configuration MOTT		
General General Usane opinistim lete - - Ostoorenus limit Witau limit Vojoot limit by datasere Statusta Statusta Dispational			0
Tekon	CL.		
Footer Cooperstance Like Bostomics Cooperstance Hass Winnerkis administration Hass Winnerkis administration III Show Feddow in Bane			
CD Takin Romanin		Taken of Planten vill 1.0	di 2011 - Readman Automogelo, S.A

Figure 159 - Tekon IoT Platform customized info



## Configure logo and favicon

- 1. Click on button to edit configurations.
- 2. Click on "Upload" button to choose an image to each field.
- 3. Please look to the information about sizes and formats on each image.

The images choosed on "Logo" and "Favicon" fields are available in several areas of Tekon IoT Platform.

	14114301 K26 🌲 KLANKE - 😑 BMA - 🚺 KLINKE -	🕴 - 🕒 alas -
Configuration Cover I and 245 Air	ano Collgouter (NOT)	
General Licone created in Adv. - - Johnson course for it Veterar first : Veterar first : 20 Teach Timenane		0
Footer Gangeay sawa bike Bittores Gangeay late Hana New Ala electronom Mana New Ala electronom Say Say fortas a filme		
CD Table Romanie	Takes of Planew vita L0	ið 3011. Brasinar dansmugda, S.A

Figure 160 - Customized logo of Tekon IoT Platform



Figure 161 - Customized logo on login window



🗧 🗉 🗴 Notacum   at 20166 at least results of Carly or starts Carly and an all results of the starts of the star	X 🔛 refigueixa - Idea of Fairs X	ο - σ ×
TERON & DADARDER & DATA	· (0 #7900 ·	🥊 - 💿 atas -
Configuration (Second Second S		
General License exploration date Underseence Inde Variant Int Variant Into Variant Int Variant Int Variant Int Variant Int Var		0
Locker Casewa kane Mikola Horraus Casewa ka Hagushawa Kanetta Kaseka ka		
	Telan will Fathers +(3.1.0	8 2001 - Brocknar Automusido, S.A.

Figure 162 - Configured favicon

## Delete logo and favicon

Click on button to delete image in use.

# NOTE: If you delete the customized images, Tekon Electronics logo and favicon will be automatically applied.

#### Change logo and favicon

- 1. Click on "Upload" button to select a new image to each field.
- 2. Please look to the information about sizes and formats on each image. **Configure footer informations**

Information about your company to be on Tekon IoT Platform footer.



	201828 🌲 ALAINO - 😑 DALA - 🔯 KÉTINGG -	💡 - 💽 alen -
Configuration Configuration Alexa	Sovigoutor WIIT	
General Ukazare swintlim Akt: Spitzerarez firit Witzer Int		0
31 Secold Timecone Congettende		
TERUN	С U	
Exelect Canagary sean Idea Extensio Canagary Ant Hays Jenny Root Historic constants Chay February Root Historic Constants		
Contra Remains	0.1 CV-reverse To exact	ið 2011. Brodinar Autopuspilo, S.A

Figure 163 - Footer information

- 1. Click on 🖉 button to edit configurations.
- 2. Insert the company name on "Company name" field.
- 3. Insert the website link on "Company link" field. By clicking on the link, user is redirected to this page.

#### NOTE: the link must be authentic and start with "https://" or "http://"

4. Click on "Show favicon in footer" checkbox if you want to use the favicon on the footer next to the link.

The fields in this section are not mandatory. The user can customize this section and define which elements will be displayed.

	rationado 🛋 luninozotico. 🌲 alatine - 😄 dala - 🧰 inclinica -	💡 - 🍙 alm -
Configuration	Desi 345 Alamo Colipatan 14000	
General Licence coniection date - Sottocerrous finit Without Init Valence finit by dataseeres - Streach Tengent Locke		۲
Tekon		
Footer Cangary man Hale Hotoros Cangary Inic Mary Jower Hale Hotoroscore Story Felce in Date		
CD Table Romanne	Totales of Paper en vita ( )	di 2011 - Brasmar Sadamayda, S.A.

Figure 164 - Tekon IoT Platform footer



# **API KEYS**

The communication between devices and **Tekon IoT Platform** is ensured by credentials, which ensure authentication and security of transacted data called API Keys. API Keys consists in individual 36-character codes automatically generated by **Tekon IoT Platform**.

API Keys are part of the profile of players responsible for communicating between sensors and the platform:

• **Datasources**: each datasource has a required API Key to distinguish the device when is transferring data with the datasource;

	as 🔺 Alartas - 🚦 Ca	а - 🗘 ятлых -	. en
Create datasource			
(1) Process 3 (2) minute			
Set below the properties of the datasource to be created			
Name*			
type.			
Timazone*		•)	
Burspa, Labon		•)	
Api Koy*			
Autombol well-star at to empriso departure	COPY	New key	
Metadata			
			not.+
		- 2010 - HOLDER AND MELL, KA	

Figure 165 - Application of API Keys

• **User**: users can generate API Keys, on the personal information page, to use in the process of submitting data to the platform;

NOTE: a user who has a non-enabled profile with permissions to send data via API cannot be used to communicate between devices and platform, even if in their personal information has an API Key available for that purpose.

<ul> <li>B Henrick and -Oscop (second)</li> <li>B Henrick and Ann Ve With Distances</li> </ul>	
8	0

Figure 166 - Send data via API option



# **MQTT**

The connectivity offered by the MQTT protocol, allows the integration of several devices. However, the data transmission must be authenticated by the MQTT broker. Credentials are required to validate the connection to the Tekon IoT Platform. These credentials are implemented in the connection process of the third device, which will act as the publisher, and serve as a key for data transmission.

## Enable MQTT protocol

- In the *Settings* » *Configuration* » *MQTT* menu, click on the icon 🕑 to access the tab options;
- Click on the Use MQTT checkbox;

	🜲 xi.zaws +	3 DATA - 🗘 SETTANS -	. ata -
Edit MQTT configurations			
🖪 use mott			
Username,/High topic*			
A module has been all about with	0.00	Nosi usertaria	
Password*			
(mapping a particular of the second state of the second se	CODY	Here paddwird	
CD			(See

Figure 167 - MQTT credentials

The page will expand and show the fields already filled in with credentials. Credentials are automatically defined by the platform, so that they can respect the defined format. The credentials required to use the MQTT protocol are as follows:

- Username/MQTT topic;
- Password;

For each credential, there are two buttons with the same functionality, but applicable to each credential.

- "Copy" button copy the credential text;
- "New password" / "New username" button generate a new credential;

rekun 🗿 easaidaad 🖻 eatasources	ALARMS + 🗮 DATA + 📫 SETTINGS.*	6
dit MQTT configurations		
S use MgTT		
Usernance/High topic*		
Distance from the over-strengthered	City Nov identical	
Password*		
( man-on-scheckle-scheber/withowson)	Copy New pacaward	

Figure 168 - Fields to copy the fields and generate new credentials

• Click on *Save* to save the changes.